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ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended on March 37,2023,the reports ofthe Board of Directors and
Auditors' thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without mod ification (s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOwED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended on March 37,2023, together with the reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors'thereon as circulated to the Members and presented to the meeting be
and are hereby approved and adopted."

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Tara Parthasarathy (DlN:07121058), who retires
by rotation and, being eligible, offers herselffor re-appointment and in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without mod ification (s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOwED THAT Ms. Tara Parthasarathy (DlN. O7L2LO58), Director, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the Company."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOtVED THAT pursuant to the provisions ofSection 149,152 of the Companies Act,
2013 read wlth Rule 8, 9 and 14 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re - enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and provisions of Articles of Association of the
Company, consent of the shareholders is hereby accorded to the appointment of
Mr. Navin M Ram (D1N.02410242) as an lndependent Director (lndependent Category)
of the Company with effect from 01.03.2023 and who is not liable to retire by rotation.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 4th Annual General Meeting of the members of ULTRAMARINE

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS LIMITED will be held at the registered office of the Company at
No. 556, Vanagaram Road, Ambattur, Chennai - 600053 on Wednesday, 19th day ofJuly, 2023
at 11.30 a.m. to transact the following business:

3. Appointment of Mr. Navin M. Ram as a Director of the Company



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any ofthe Director or Company Secretary ofthe Company
are hereby severally authorized to file Form DIR -12 and to do all such acts/ deeds/
things as may deem fit to give effect to this resolution."

4. lncrease in the authorized share capital of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOIVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section L3, 6L, 64 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any
statutory modification(s) and re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force) and the rules framed thereunder, consent of the board be and is hereby
accorded to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from the
present Rs.74,05,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Four Crores Five lakhs) consisting of
3,77,50,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each (Three Crore Seventy seven lakhs fifty
thousand equity shares of Rupees Ten each) and 3,63,000 preference shares of
Rs.1,000/- each (Three lakhs Sixty three thousand preference shares of Rupees
one thousand each) to Rs.88,30,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Elght crores Thirty
lakhs) consisting of:

(i) 5,20,00,000 (Five Crore Twenty Lakhs ) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees

Ten) each,
(ii) 3,63,000 (Three Lakh Sixty three twenty five thousand) 7.5% Non-

cumulative redeemable and optionally convertible preference shares of
Rs. 1,000/- each,

"FURTHER RESOTVED THAT the Memorandum of Association of the Company be
and is hereby altered by substituting the existing Clause V thereof by the following
new Clause V as under:

The Authorised Share Capital ofthe Company shall be Rs.88,30,00,000/- (Rupees

Eighty Eight Crores Thirty lakhs) consisting of:
(i) 5,20,00,000 (Five Crore Twenty lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees

Ten) each;

(ii) 3,63,000 (Three Lakhs Sixty three thousand) 7.5% Non- cumulative
redeemable and optionally convertible preference shares of Rs. 1,000/-
each,

with power to increase and reduce the capital of the company and to divide the
shares in the capital for the time being into different classes and to attach thereto
respectively such preferential or special rights or privileges or conditions as may
be determined by or in accordance with the regulations ofthe company."
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Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meetin8 is entitled to appoint a

proxy to attend advote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be

a member of the Company.A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not
exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy

for any other person or shareholder. The instrument appointing a proxy should,
however, be deposited not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

2. The Register of Members will remain closed from l1th July, 2023 to 19th July,
2023 (both the days inclusive).

5. The Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting.

5. Proxies registers are open for inspection during the period beginning twenty-
four hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Meeting and
ending with the conclusionof the meeting. lnspection shall be allowed between
11.00 A.M. and 5.00 P.M.

7. All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection atthe Registered
office of the Company on all the working days of the Company between 11:00
A.M and 1:00 P.M. up to the date of Annual General meeting.

By the Order of he Board
For Ultramarine Specialty Chemi s Limited,

Regd. Office:
No. 556, Vanagaram Road,

Ambattur, Chennai - 600053
3lrtvtay,2023

s.
Company

ma an

e ary
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3. The proxy holder shall prove his/her identity at the time of attending the
meeting. When a member appoints a proxy and both the member and proxy
attend the meeting, proxy stands automatically revoked.

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to
attend the meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy ofthe
Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their
behalf at the meeting.

L



Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 (11 ofthe Companies act 2013

As required by sub section 1 of Sectlon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
following explanatory statement set out all the material facts relating to Notice
dated May31, 2023.

Mr. Navin M. Ram (D1N.02410242) was appointed as an additional director
(lndependent Category) ofthe Company with effect from 01.03.2023 at the meeting
of Board of directors held on February 28,2023.

Mr. Navin M Ram is an independent director in the holding Company, Ultramarine &
Pigments Ltd. The Board of Directors of Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd at its meeting
held on 7th February, 2023 taking into consideration the amount of resources
invested in the wholly owned subsidiary, proposed to nominate Mr. Navin Ram as a

director (independent category) on the Board of Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals
Ltd. to review the operational status, and effective implementation of Corporate
governance.

Mr. Navin Ram holds the office of additional Director until the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and his appointment requires regularization by the
shareholders at this Meeting.

The Board considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the
Company and recommends the above Resolution as ordinary resolution set out in
Item No. 3 of the Notice for the approval of the Members.

No Director, or their relatives are concerned or interested in the passing of this
Resolution.

The Current Authorized share Capital of the Company is Rs.74,05,00,000/- (Rupees
Forty four Crores Ten Lakhs) consisting of:

i) 3,77,50,000 (Three Crore Seventy seven lakhs fifty thousand) Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each,

ii) 3,63,000 (Two Lakh twenty thousandl 75% Non- cumulative redeemable and
optionally convertible preference shares of Rs.1,000/- each

and the paid up share capital of the Company is Rs.59,05,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty nine
Crores five Lakhs) consisting of

(i) 3,32,50,000 (Three Crore Thirty two lakhs fifty thousand) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
(Rupees Ten) each,

4

Item No. 3.

Item No. 4.

ii) 2,58,000 (Two Lakh twenty thousandl 7.5ok Non- cumulative redeemable and

optionally convertible preference shares of Rs.1,000/- each.
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and the paid up share capital of the Company is Rs.59,05,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty nine
Crores five Lakhs) consisting of

(i) 3,32,50,000 (Three Crore Thirty two lakhs fifty thousand) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
(Rupees Ten) each,

ii) 2,58,000 (Two Lakh twenty thousandl 7.5% Non- cumulative redeemable and
optionally convertible preference shares of Rs.1,000/- each.

The increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company will also require
consequential amendment in the Clause V ofthe Memorandum ofAssociation ofthe
Company.

Pursuant to Section 13 and 61 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, alteration ofthe Capital
Clause requires approval of the members of the Company by way of passing an
Ordinary Resolution to that effect.

No Director, or their relatives are concerned or interested in the passing of this
Resolution.

By the Order of the Board
For Ultramarine Specialty Che icals Limited,

s manan
Company Secretary

A

Regd. Office:
No. 556, Vanagaram Road,
Ambattur, Chennai - 600053
37*ttay,2023
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The Company is planning to raise resources by way of equity infusion from its holding
Company, Ultramarine & Pigments Limited. To accommodate this proposal, it is

necessary to increase the authorised share capital of the Company. The Company
proposes to increase its authorised share capital from Rs. 74,05.00,000 /- (Rupees

Seventy four crores and five lakhs) to Rs.88,30.00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Eight Crores
Thirty lakhs).

The Board recommends the Resolution set out in ltem No. 4of the Notice for the
approval of the Members
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ULTRAMARINE SPECIALTY CHEMICALS TIMITED

Director's Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 4th Annual Report and 1't year of operation for financial year

ended March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAT RESUITS:

A summary of the company's Financial Results for the financial yeat 2022 -23 is as under:
Amount (Rs. [akhs]

Particulars FY ended March 31, 2023
(July 25, 2022-March 31,

20231

FY ended March
3t,2022

Revenue from operations r,675
Expenses L,253
Profit before tax 365 (21

Deferred Tax (64)

Tax expenses relating to prior years (0.23)

Profit after Tax 301 l2l

OPERATION AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

During the year, the company has successfully commissioned the green field project to manufacture
Pigments at Naidupet, Andhra Pradesh. This plant has a capacity of 1500 MT and in 8 months of
operation, achieved a total capacity utilization of 70%. This plant is capable of producing more volume
of premium pigments. Project to add additional capacity of 2250 MT of pigments with a capital outlay
of Rs 80 crore is under implementation.

Additionally, project to manufacture complex inorganic pigments has been completed partially and
balance will be installed in the current FY. The total capacity of the plant is 550 MT, with an overall
capital outlay of Rs 3673 lakhs.

During the year under review, being the first year of operation, the revenue from operations stood at
Rs 1,615 lakhs including export revenue of Rs 1,079 lakhs. The Company has achieved a profit after
tax of Rs 300 lakhs.

1
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DECTARATION OF DIVIDEND:

Equity and Preference dividend

ln order to conserve reserves for working capital, no dividend on equity and preference dividend is

recommended/declared by the Board for the FY ended March 31, 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year under review, the Board at its meeting held on April 28, 2022 and November 07, 2022

has made the following allotments to its holding company viz., Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd:

i ) 13,40,000 fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

ii) 99,00,000 fully paid up equity shares of Rs 10/ each and 7.5o/o 38,000 optionally convertible
preference shares of Rs.1,000/- each, fully paid up.

The share capital of the company as on March 31, 2023 stood at Rs 59,05,00,000 divided into
3,32,50,000 equity shares of Rs 10/ each and 2,58,OOO 7.5% Weference shares of Rs 1000/ each.

MEETINGS:

During the year under review, following Board Meetings were held:

Aptil 28 , 2022 August 02,2022
May 24,2022 Odober L2,2022
November 07, 2022 February 06, 2023

February 28,2023

The meetings of the Board are held in compliance with the provisions as envisaged under Companies

Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard (5S-1). The time gap between two meetings are not more than 120

days as prescribed under the Act.

Since the company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd, constituting of
committees is not mandatory.

DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, Mr. Navin M Ram (DlN-02410242) being an lndependent director in the
Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd was appointed as an Additional Director- under lndependent Category
with effect from March 01, 2023 and not subject to retire by rotation.

ln order to implement best corporate governance practice , the above appointment was made even
though the company is not a "material subsidiary'' as defined under SEBt (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 as on March 37,2023.

DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION AND RE-APPOINTMENT:

As per the Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Tara Parthasarathy (DtN-07121058), retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment.

1
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILIW STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Compa nies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm thal:
il in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023 the applicable

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material

departures.

iil appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied and such judgment and estimates
have been made that a re reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company as at March 3 L, 2023 and of the profit/ Loss of the company for the year ended that
date.

iiil proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,

iv] the annual accounts have been prepared on a "going concern "basis.

vlthat proper internalfinancial controls are laid down and are adequate and operating effectively.

vi] that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws have been

devised and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICUI.ARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, no loans/guarantee/investments have been made

RETATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details relating to related party transactions are provided in the note no.36 to financial
statements.

DISCTOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAI HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPTACE (PREVENTION,

PROHtBtTtON AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

No. of complaints: Nil

EXTRACI OF ANNUAT RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of Annua I Return in Form MGT- 9 are given in Annexure - 1 to
this report.

AUDITORS

M/s. Brahmayya & Co. Chartered accountants, Chennai was appointed as the statutory auditors ofthe
Company to hold office for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of L't Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Company held on 21.'t August 2020 till the conclusion of 5th AGM to be held in the
calendar year 2025.

M/s M S Krishnaswamy & Co., (Firm Registration No. 1552-5)Practicing Chartered Accountants,
Chennai was appointed as the internal auditor at the meeting of Board of directors held on October
12,2022 to strengthen the internal financial control and internal controlsystem.

3
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PARTICUTARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1),(2) & (3)

of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect
of employees of the Company: Nil.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO:

The particulars required to be included in terms of section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
regard to Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption- Nil.

The detalls of foreign Exchange earnings and outgo is as follows:

Particulars FY 2022-23(Rs in lakhsl FY 2021-22 (Rs in lakhs)

Foreign exchange
(Rs in lakhs)

inflow 1079.35 Nil

Foreign exchange outflow (Rs

in lakhs)

33.46 52.49

ACKNOWTEDGEMENT

Your Directors thank the Central and State Government, Organisations and Agencies for the co-

operation extended by them.

on Behalf of the Board
For Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited,

u"il^=*
Tara76arthasarathy
olfctor
(DIN-071210s8)

V Bharathram
Director
(DrN-08444s83)

Place: Chennai
Date: May 18,2023
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Annexure -l

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on March 31,2023

IPursuant to section 92(3] of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1] of the Companies
Management and Administration) Rules, 20141

rORM NO. MGT - 9

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAITS:

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing l0% o( more of the total turnover of the com pany shall

be stated:- Nil

* As per National lndustrial Classification - Ministry of Statistics and Programme implementation.

III. PARTICUTARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

5

ctN u24300TN 2019P1C133064

Registration Date 09.L2.2019

Name of the company Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having share capital
Address of the Registered office and contact
details

No.556, Vanagaram Road, Ambattur, Chennai -
600053, Ph: 0091-44-26L367O0 - 26L36704,
Fax: 0091-44-26821201

Whether listed company No

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar
and Transfer Agent, if any

Not Applicable

S. No.
Name and Description of
main products / services

NIC Code of the*
Product/ service

% to total turnover of the

Company

1 Manufacturing of Chemicals 202

S. No
Name and address

of the company
crN/GrN

Applicable

Section

1 Ultramarine &

Pigments Limited

124224M H 1960P1C011856 Holding 100 2 (46l|

JO

I

I

700%

I Y" ol
Holding/ |I Shares

Subsidiarv/ i" I Held
Associate I

I



No. of Shares held at the end of the yearNo. of Shares held at the beginning ofthe

year

%of

Total

Shares

Category

of

shareholders

De

ma

t

Physical Total

%of

Total

Shares

D

e

m

at

Physical Total

(A) Promoters

(1) lndian

60 60 0.00la) lndividual/HUF

Equity Shares

60 60 0.06

(b) Central Gow

(c) state Govt (s)

3,32,49,940

2,58,000

3,32,49,940

2,s8,000

99.22

0.78

{d) Eodies corp.

Ultramarine &

Pigments Ltd

Equity Shares

(Face value of Rs

10/ each)

Preference Shares

(Face value of Rs

1000/ each)

2,20,O9,940

2,20,000

2,20,09,940

2,20,000

99.01

0.99

(e) Banks / rt

(f) Any Other -
Trust

3,35,08,000 100.00sub-Total (A) (1) 2,22,10,OOO 2,22,30,O00 100.00 3,3s,O8,000

(2) Foreign

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Ca pita I Breakup as percentage of Total Equitvl': - Cotegory-wise

Shore Holding:

6

!t

I

I

I

I I

I
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I

I

I

I(a) NRls -
lndividua ls

(b) other -
lndividuals



(c) Bodies Corp.

(e) Any Other

Sub-rotal (A) (21

Category

of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of

the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year %

of

Chang

e

during

the

Year

Demat Physical Total

%ol

Total

shares

Demat Physical Total

%ol

Total

Shares

(B) PublicShareholding

(1) lnstitutions

(a) Mutual

Funds

(b) Banks/Fl

(c) Central Govt

(d) State Govt

(s)

{e) Venture
Capital funds

(f) lnsurance
Companies

(g) Flls

(h) Foreign

Venture
Ca pital

Funds

(i) Foreign

Portfolio
lnvestors
(Coporate)

1

)z

(d) Banks / Fr 
I

I

I

I

I

I



(i) Oth ers
(Specify)

sub-Total (B)(u

(2) Non- lnstitutions

(a) Bodies Corp

i. lndian

ii, Overseas

(b) lndividuals

lndividual
shareholders
holding

nominal

share capital

up to
Rs.2lakh

ii. lndividual
shareholders
holding
nom ina I

share capital
in excess of
Rs.2lakh

(c) Others (Specify)

IEPF

Escrow Account

Clea ring

members

Hindu undivided

families

N RI

Trusts

sub-Total (B)(2)

8
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Total

Shareholding of
Public

= (s! (r) + (e) (z)

C. Shares held

by custodian for
GDRS & ADRS

(ii) Shoreholding of Promoters:

S.No Shareholders'

Name

Shareholding at the beginning of

the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of

shares

%ol

total

Shares

of the

compa

ny

%of Shares

Pledged /
encumbered

to total

shares

No, of

Shares

ot

total

Shares

of the

company

%of Shares

Pledged /
encumberer

to total

shares

Ultramarine

& Pigments Ltd

Equity Shares

Preference Shares

2,20,O9,940

2,20,OOO

99.01

0.99

3,32,49,940

2,58,000

99.92

0.8

2 R. Sa mpath 10 0 10 0

3 lndira
Sundararajan

10 0 10 0

R. Parthasarathy 10 0 0

5 V. Bharathram 10 0 10 0

6 Tara

Parthasarathy
10 0 10 0

7 R. Senthil Kumar 10 0 10 0

Total 2,22,10,OOO 100 3,3s,08,000 100

9
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I

1.
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(iii) Change in Promoters' Shoreholding (pleose specify, it there is no change): Reler (ii) obove

(iv) Shoreholding Pottern of top ten Shoreholders (other thon Directors, Promoters ond Holders ol GDRS

and ADRS): Nil

lv) Shoreholding of Oiredors ond Key Monogeridl Pe6onnel:

A. Remunerotion to Mdndging Director, Whole-time Directors dnd/or Monoger: Nil

B. Remunerdtion to other Directors: Nil

sl.

No

Name of the Directors

and KMP

Date wise lncrease /
Decrease in Shareholding

during the year specifying

the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of

shares

% of total

shares of the

company

No. of shares

% ot total

shares of the

company

1. Mr. R. Sampath, Director

At the beginning of the year t0 0
0

At the End of the year
10 0 10 0

2. Mr. v. Bharathram, Director

At the beginning of the year
10 0 10 0

At the End of the year
10 0 10 0

3. Ms. Tara Parthasarathy,

Director

At the beginning of the year
10 0 10

0

At the End ofthe year
10 0 10 0

10

1{

I

I

10

IV. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAT PERSONNEL:
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V. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

On Behalf ofthe Board
For U marine Specialty Chemicals timited

!,"a-.,\--91'
Tara P rthasarathy V. Bharathram

Director

lDlN:084445831

Director

lDrN 07x210s81
Date: May 18, 2023
Place: Chennai

Type

section of
the

Companies

Act

Brief

Description

Details of
Penalty /

Punishment/

Compounding

fees imposed

Authority

[RD /
NCLv

couRTI

Appeal made, if
any

(give Details)

Penalty None

Punishment None

Compounding None

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAUTT

Penalty None

Punishment None

Compounding None

11
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Brahmayya&co
Chartered Accountants

To
The Members of Ultramarine Speciality Chemicals [imited

Report on the Financial Statements

1.1 We have audited the financial statements of Ultramarine Speciality Chemicals Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2073, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements,
includ ing a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other expla natory information ("the
fi nancial statements").

7.2 ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting standards under
section 133 of Act read with the companies ( lndian Accounting standards) Rules 2015 as

amended , " (lnd AS)" and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 37,2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2 Basis for Opinion

2.7 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Audito/s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of
the Compa nies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

3 Key Audit Matters

3.1 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financia I statements as a whole, and ln forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have

determined that there are no other key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

4 Other lnformation

4.1 The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

other information comprises the Information included in Board's Report including Annexures to
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Board's Report and Shareholder's lnformation but does not include the financial statements and our

audito/s report thereon.

4.2 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

4.3 ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

4,4 lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial
statements

5.1 The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial

Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lnd AS

specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irre8ularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

5.2 ln preparing the financialstatements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so-

5,3 The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

6 Audito/s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

5.1 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

a udito/s report that includes our opinion. Reasona ble assurance is a high level of assura nce but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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6.2 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professlonal scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audito/s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6.3 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

6.4 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

6.5 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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b. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
1a3(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements ln place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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7.1

7 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applica ble.

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examinatlon of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the lndian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on 3l'tMarch,2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31'r
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in "Annexure 8". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as at 31't March, 2023 which would
impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. (a)The Ma nagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entity ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Compa ny ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any gua rantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding

Party ("Ultimate Beneflciaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)

above, contain any material misstatement-

v. The company has not paid/declared any dividends during the year under review. Hence,

compliance of section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)

facilfty is applicable to the Company with effect from April 7, 2023, and accordingly,

reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 is not applicable

for the financialyear ended March 31, 2023

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section L97lL5l ol the Act, as amended, no remuneration is paid by the

Company to its directors during the year and hence, provisions of section 197 of the Act are

not applicable.

For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg istration No: 0005115
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R. Natendra
Pa rtne r
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Annexure - 'A' to lndependent Auditors' Report
IReferred to in paragraph 7.1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements' of our
Report of even datel

On the basis of such checks as considered appropriate a nd in terms of the information and explanation
furnished to us, we state as under:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantltative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(b) As explained to us, the company has a program of verification to cover all items of
Property, Plant and Equipment in a phased manner to cover all assets once in every three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable. Pursuant to the program, the management
carried out the physical verification of the Property, Plant and Equipment and during the
year. The discrepancies noticed on such verification were not material;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company except the following:

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible

assets during the year.
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(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 3L, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) As explained to us, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals which in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate having regard to the size and nature of business and no
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical
verification;

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of < 5 crore, in aggregate,
during the year from banks on the basis of security of current assets & fixed asset and the
company is regular in submlsslon of quarterly returns with the bank and the returns have been
prepared and are in agreement with the books of account for the year under review.

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d),
(e) and (fl of the Order is not applicable.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not Branted any loans, or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any
investments to the parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act

The Company has not accepted any deposit to which the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 would apply. As informed to us,

no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve

Bank of lndia or any court or any other tribunal related to compliance with above provisions.

The maintenance of cost records pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,

2014 prescribed by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act are not appliable
to the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,

the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues

including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty
of customs, cess and other statutory dues and there are no undisputed statutory dues

outstanding as at 31st March 2023, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the records ofthe company and information and explanations given to us, there

are no outstanding amounts in respect of sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, goods and

servlces tax and other statutory that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome

Tax Act, 1951 (43 of 1961).
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(ix)

(x)

(x i)

(xii)

(x iii)
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(a) As per the information and explanations given to us, there was no default in repayment of
loans or other borrowings (no amounts due during the financialyear) and the company has not
defaulted in the payment of interest thereon except for few delays in payment of interest to its
holding company.

(b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by the bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The company has availed term loan during the year from banks and holding company and
the term loan have been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, no funds raised on short term
basis have been utilised for long term purposes during the year.

Since the company does not have any Subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies and

hence the reporting under clause 3(ix) (e) & (f) is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not a pplicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any private placement during the year.

However, the company has issued further capital in the form of equity and preference shares to
its holding compa ny d uring the year a nd the req uirements of Section 62 of companies Act 2013
have been complied and the funds raised have been used for the purpose for which the funds
were raised.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there have been no cases of fraud by the com pany or a ny fra ud on the com pany has

been noticed or reported during the year under report.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year

(and up to the date of this report).

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiiXa), 3(xiiXb) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order are not
a pplica ble.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections

177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in

the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)
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(a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to have an internal audit system as per the
provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013. However, during the year, the company has introduced
internal system and the internal audit system is adequate and commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company d uring the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our aud it
proced ures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records ofthe Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
a pplicable.

(a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the
Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) ln our opinion, the company is not a core investment company and there is no core
investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core lnvestment Companies (Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) and 3(xvi)(d) of the
Order is not applica ble-

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year. However, the Company has

incurred cash losses of i 2.25 Lakhs during the previous financialyear (primarily on account of
charging of administrative expenses).

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and

accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets

and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe a udit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability ofthe Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, wlll get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xxi)

Place: Chennai
Date: 18th May 2023
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As per information and explanatlons given to us, Since the threshold limit as specified by section

135 (1) of the companies Act, 2013 is not met, the CSR provisions are not applicable to the
company during the current financial year. and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and
(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The company is not having investments in subsidiaries/ associates or joint ventures and

therefore not required to draw any consolidated financial statements. Hence, the reporting

under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Brahmayya & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 0005115

R ,'.r-

R Nagend
Pa rtner
Membership number: 203377
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ANNEXURE . "8" TO AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 7.2 (f) of our report of even date

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Ultramarine Speciality chemicals Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and

maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
("Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India ("lCAl"). These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financia I statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the a udit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal flnancial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
Included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financlal
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectlveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgment, includlng the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.

3

4
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Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors ofthe company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to stand alone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 37, 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("the Guidance
Note").

For Brahmayya & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration numbe :0005115

7

8
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Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014. lndia.

R.. ^'R. Nagendra
Pa rtner
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Ullramarine Sp€cia lty Che miGa ls timited
aalance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

{ in Lakhs

!1st March 2022
s. No

Note

31st March 202:l

8,120.82
888.94

1.68

13.55

M7.44

914.44
s,446.59

9.00

79.22

181.50

0.45

112.29

761-25

6,449.65

54.53

178.48
1.11.71

7.55
0.29
4.00

9,1,-tZ.S7

838.61

1,024.34
2,165.08 1,770.A7

7,559-6111,337.55

3,325.00
597.80

2,201.00
130.90

3,922.80

6,427,63

6.83

2.41

64.27

2,331.90

3,875_00

66.72

434,24

6.88

1r.0.45

5,501.14

343.00
17.05

2.08

3,941-72

34.20

12.52

1,176-96
3-07

(0.00

913.71 '1,286-65

1r,337.55 7,ss9.67

(1)

tzl

(1)

(2)

ASSETS

Non{utt€nt asseis

{a) Property, Plant and Equipment

lb) Capital work in p.ogress

lc)lntangible assets

{d)FinancialAssets
(i) lnvestments
(ii)Loans
(iii) Other financial assets

(elDefered tax asset
(f)Other non current assets

Cu.rcnt atsels
(allflventories
(b) FinancialAssets

{i) lnvestments
(ii)Trade receivables

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balan.es other than cash and cath equivalents

{v)Loans
lvi) Other financial assets

(c)Cur.ent Tax Assets (Net)

(d) Othercurrent assets

Cu.rent liabilities
(a) Financial Liabillties

(i) Borrowings
(li) Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises
TotaloutstandinB dues ofcreditoas other lhan micro

enterprises and small enterprise5

{ili) Lease liabilities
(iv) Other Iinancial lia bilities

{b) Other current liabilities

{.) Provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities

EqUlTYAND TIABILITIES

Equity
(a)Equity Share capital
(b)Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-.urrent liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

li)Eorrowings
(ii)Lease liabilities
(iii) Other financial liabilities

(b)Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

4

4
5

6
7

8

2t

22

9

15

18

16

23

24

25

10

11

12

13

14

19

20

7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behall of Board ol Directors

Compa I,A^t
R.NAG

As per our report oI even date attached

V BHARATHRAM

Direalor
DIN : 08,!14583

For Brahmayya & Co

Charlered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.0005115

Membership No.203377
Plare: Chennai

oate : 18th May 2023

Director
DIN:07121058

2q

^--^e-



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3lst March, 2023

I in Lakhs

3

s. No
Year ended 31st March

2022

I

t

IV

vt

v

v t

tx

x

Revenue From Operations
Other lncome

Totallncome (l+ll)

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in lnventories of Finished goods and work-in-progress

Power and Fuel

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (lV)

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items (lll-lV)

Exceptional items

Profit / (Loss) before tax (v+vl)

Tax expense:
(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

(3) lncome tax expense relating to prior years

Profit / (Loss) for the period (Vll-vlll)

Other Comprehensive lncome
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

A (ii) lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

I (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

B (ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or

loss

Total other comprehensive income (A (i - ii) + B(i - ii))

Total comprehensive income for the period (lX + Xl)

Earnangs per equity share of face value of I 10 each

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

26

27

2A

29

30

31

4&5
32

30

1,6L5.02

3.60
1,618.52

483.70

(s43.1s)

315.06
262.04

209.L4

298.88
227.71

0.03

1.99

1,253.38 2.02

355.24 12.o2l

365.24 (2.02)

164.271

(0.23 )

300.97 (2.2s)

(0.07)

(0.07)

300.90 (2.2s)

1.11

1.1r.

(0

0

00

00
)

( )

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Brahmayya & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.0005115

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R.
5.

Company

nan

^(
R.NAGENDR

Partner

T PARTHASARATHY V BHARATHRAM

Director
DIN:08t!14583

rector
M€mbership No.203377
Place: Chennai

Date : 18th MaV 2023
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Y

retary
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ult.amarlne soe.lrltv Chemlcals Llmited
St.tement ot carh toes for th. vear ended 31n M.rch 2023

For tt. y.rr end.{ 31slro, $e Year ended 31n

12.02)

0.03

355.24

209.14
298.a3

(0.07)
(0.47)

8r7.27

1s9.28)

{784.08)
u,78.0u
1@_82

{261,09)
(4.55)

1128.11)

r0,61

13,98

11.99)

{54.531

46.59

ls1.r1)
{7s2.12}

{9.OOl

1(M.18

{60.65}
{0.53'

1408.81)

10.15)

17r9.65)

{0.231

I4O8.96) {779.89)

13,766.55) {4,128.801

,"290.00
3!d.00
955.@

r;52,00
229,47

70-ot)

ETr15l

1,tt4,m)
2,200,00

s50.!o
1,125.d,

10.03)

4,\OS.1Z 5,008.97

{69.79) 100.28

181.47

0.03

47.22

181.50 81.22

111.34

0.37 0.03

111.71 181.50

c

cish f,ow tom operatlnt actlvltles
Pront b.foGtax/(lo$)

0epr..lation and amonitarion expe.!.!
Provisio. for Leave Enc.5hment

Rem.arurement ol Ratu.n on asrel
N.t t.lns on forcign cur.ncy tEnsadlons .nd translatio.

Op.r.tlni profit befor. worllng orltrl .h.n!.s

Mo!.ments a. worlln8 epltal:
adlunmeir3 for lho..elldedea* ln op.r.tinB asts:

cuf"^r fih.^.ia ,ss.t!

No. cLrr.nillnan.ala*.8
Olher Non-currenlassetr

Adiurrm€nts for inoea*/ldecrEa*l l. operaune liabllltl.i:

Oth.r.unent llab liu.s

Orh.' non{urr.nr I n.^cra ab tes

Net carh seneEted tom / l!*d in)operatln8 activities {A)

G3h flowr trom irvBting .ctMdE

P.Vh..rlorprop.ny,pl.ntand€qulprn.nt(PPE)(lncludlnsCapitalwork
in-progre55 :hd capiral.dv.n@il

,let e5h lu*d ir) lnvetthg ..tivitiei (61

c.sh ioe from fi.ancint.dvldes
Proc..ds lrom issu.ol.quityi.strum.nts ro holdingcohpany
Proce.ds hom Esue ol pr.i.rence shar.r to holdin8company
Prd..d5 lrom T.16 lo.n rrom holdingconpany
Proce.ds l.om so.rowihgs lrom Ba.kJ
P.oceeds lrom woriin! eprtal lrom a Be nk
Proc..ds lrom worklnS capital frcm Hold lng company
lni.r.srp.id {n.t of int.rest capitali5.d t 55,62 (PY 132,22)ln.luded in
c.prt.l Wo.k-ln-Progr.ie)

Nel cathfrom/ (used l.) fr.andns adivitler (c)

NEI INCREA5E/IDECiEASEI IN CNSH ANO CASH EQUIVAI,EIIIs (AI + IB' +

{c)l

CA5II ANO CISH EQUIVALENIS AIIHE 6EGINIIIN6 OFIBE YEAR

Bal.n..5 with b:nk ln cu entac.ou.tt

Addr Short-te.m brnkd.posits with origin.lmaturity of hore th..3
mo.ths.nd lelr than 12 tunths

CASII AIIO CASH IQUNALENIS

C'SH AND (ASH EOUIVALTNTS A'T THE ENO OFTHE YIAR
B.l..c.s with bank! . cu(entaccountt

AddrShon-term ba.Ld.posits with oriainalruturity ot Bore tha.3
months and le$ th.n 12 months

CAsH AND CASH EqU NALENTs AS PER NOIE NO.11

c.rn !...r.ted lroh oPeratio.t

fie .ccohpanyrng noter loro an r.legral p.rt ot th. llnan.ial stlteDe.ts

/"=..*-
rl oo*rro-*r*
9ltedo.

flN:071210s8

J*--.
olN :04444513

For.nd o. behalfof Soard of Directors

A^l

as rer our repoi ol lven d.tc .rl..hed

chanered Ac.ouniants
Flrm negn, No.0005113

Membership No,203377

't ,l
s,l

I

I t!,7a6.5s,1 (4,12a.80)



Ultram.rine Specialty Chemicals Limited

Statement ofchanges in €quityIoI the period ended 31st Ma.ch,2023

t ln iakhs

{ in lakht

1.00

1.00

2,200_oo

2,201.00

2,201oo
1,124-OO

3,32s.00

Balanr€ as at 31st M.rch 2021

Changes in equity share capitaldue to prior period e(ors
Restated balance as at 1stApril2021
Changer ln equity share capital during the year

B.l.nce as at 31sl March 2022

Changes in equity share capitaldue to prior period erors
Restated balance as at 1stApril2022
ChanSes in equityshare capitalduring the year

Bal.nce as al 31rt March 2023

lt

Type of Prelernc€ Share Redeemable

PrererentialShares

Non Cumulative
Optionally Convertible

Pref€r€ntialShar€s

As at lst Apdl 2021
Changes in prefer€nce share capitaldurinS the year

Ealance as at 31st March 2022

2,200.00

2,200.o0

As at 1rt Ap.il 2022
Changes in preference share capitaldLrringthe year

Balance as at 31sl March 2023

2,200.00

2,200.00

380.00

380.00

tlt < in Lakhs

SurplusShare . pplicatlon

money p€ndin8

allotment Gen€ralRes€rve

It€ms ofOther

income (OCll

1,200.00 lo.8s) 1.199.15

1,200.00 -0.8s

(2.2s)

1,199.1s

(2.2s)

12.25) 12.2s)

As at 31st March 2021

Changes in equityshare capitaldueto priorperiod errors
Restated balance ar at lstAprll2021
Changes in equity share capitaldue to prior period errors
Profit forthe y€arending 31st March, 2022
Other Comprehensive lncome
Total romp.Ghensive incomc {orth€ Period

Share Applicataon Money received during the year
Share Application Money transferred to share capitel

134.00

11,200.00)

134.00
(1,200.001

134.00 (3.10) 130.90

134.00 -3.10

300.97

(0.07)

300.97 (0.07)

130.90

300.97

10.07)
300.90

As at 31st March 2022

Changes ln equity rhare capitaldue to prior period errors
R€st.ted bal.ncr.r at 1st April2022
Changes in accountinS policy or prior period errors
Profit forthe yearending 31st March,2023
Other Comprehensive lncome

' Remeasurement ofReturn on Assets lN€t ofTaxes)
Iotal €omprehensive incom€ for th€ Period

S hare Application Mo.ley received during the year
5hare Appllcation Money tra nsfe rred to share capital
Aoorooriation
Flnal dividend - 2022'23

1,670.00
(1,504.00)

1,670 00

i1,504.00)

As at 31st March 2023 300.00 297.46 {0.07) 597.80

Forand on behalfofth€ Board of Directors

t
Oate : 18th May 2023

PARTHASARATHYRa V BHARATHRAM

Dir€ctor
DIN | 084114583

A. "rR.NAGENO

Memb€rship No.203377

PlacerChennai

Th€ accompanying notesform an int€gralpart of the financialstatements
As pcr our report ofeven date anached

Dir€ctor
OIN:07121058

For Brahmayya & Co

CharterEd Accounlants
tirm Regn. No.0005l1S

<r)

I

Retain€d Earnings



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March3l, 2023

All amounts are in INR unless otherwise stated

1 General lnformation
Ultramarine Specialty Chemlcals Limited (the 'Company') is a Public Limited Company domiciled in lndia,

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. applicable in lndia. The Company was incorporated

with an objective of manufacturing and selling pigments. The company has commenced its operations on 25th July,

2022. lt's a wholly owned subsidiary of Ultramarine & Pigments Limited.

The Holding Company has committed an investment to an extent of I 9,755 Lakhs in the form of Equity and
Preference shares. Further, the holding company has commltted investment in the form of term loan of I 2,594
Lakhs to meet out the project cost.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS), under
historical cost convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values, as per the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013, (the ?ct') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, except per share data.

Current and non-current classification:
Any asset or liability is satisfied as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i. Asset / liability is expected to be realized / settled in the Company's normal operating cycle
ii. Asset is intended for sale or consumption
iii. Asset / Liability is held primarily for the purpose oftrading
iv. Asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for atleast twelve months after the reporting date
v. ln case of a Liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the

liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting date

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

z.
A.

B

c

-? .{

The registered office ofthe Company is located at No.556, Vanagaram Road, Ambattur, Chennai. The company has

implemented a greenfield project for manufacture of Pigments in Naidupet, Andhra Pradesh. The Company has

commenced commercial operation on July 25, 2022.

The financial statements were approved at the meeting of Board of directors held on May 18, 2023.



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:

1. Certain financial assetsand liabilities that are measured atthefairvalue
2. Defined benefit plans - Plan assets measured at fair value.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requlres management to make estimates,

assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year.

Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions and .iudgements are
revlewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and

future periods.

ln the process of applying the Company's accounting polic;es, management has made the following estimates,
assumptions and judgments, which have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and lntanBible assets

The Company has estimated the useful lives of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated
usage of the assets, past hlstory of replacement, anticipated technological changet etc. Management believes
that assigned useful lives are reasonable. The Company reviews the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each balance sheet date. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are
determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. This re-assessment may result in change of depreciation expense in future periods.

lncome taxes
Management estimates the provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company
reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities. The factors used in
estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements.

Contingencies and Provisions
Management assesses and est:mates the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
lnformation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending 31't March 2023 is included in the following notes:
- Note 33- recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood

and magnitude of an outflow of resources;
- Note 34 - measurement ofdefined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

3, SignificantAccountingPolicies

Property, Plant, and Equipment: (PPE)

lnitial Recotnition
3.1

34

D.

E.



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses if any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment includes its purchase price

(after deducting trade discounts and rebates), import duties, non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other

incidental expenses related to the acquisition, installation and brinBlng the asset to its working condition for its

intended use.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted

for, as separate items (ma.jor components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalized if it is probable that the
future economic benefits of the part will flow to the Company and that its cost can be measured reliably. The

carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Any gains or losses on their disposal, determined by comparing sales proceeds with carrying amount, are

recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Measurement:
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and expenditure meet the reco8nition criteria.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residualvalue:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using the straightJine method based on the useful
life and in the manner prescribed in Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following
categories of assets, where the useful life of the property, plant and equipment have been determined by the
Management based on the technical assessment/evaluation:

Category of property, plant and
Equipment

Useful Life in Years

As per Schedule ll As per Company's Assessment
Plant & Equipment L2-40 5-20
Computer Equipment 3-6 3

lndividual assets costing less than { 10,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Depreclation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted if
appropriate, with the effect of changes in estimate of useful life of those assets being accounted on prospective
basis. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Derecognition:
An item of plant and equipment is derecognlzed upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the asset is recognized in the profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognized.

lntangible Assets:
Initial Recognition

3.2

35



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 3l, 2023

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially measured at cost. lntangible assets are recognize d if and only il
it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and

the cost ofthe asset can be measured reliably.

Cost of separately acquired intangible assets includes its purchase price (after deducting trade discounts and

rebates), import duties & non-refundable purchase taxes, any costs directly attributable to preparing the asset

for its lntended use.

Subsequent measurement and Amortization
(0 lntangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.
([) lntangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis as under:

a. Software costing up to I 25,000/- is amortised out in the year of acquisition.
b. other Software acquired is amortised over its estimated useful life of 3 years;

c. lntellectual Property is amortised over its estimated useful life of 2 years.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at each Balance Sheet

date, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition of intangible assets

An lntangible asset is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

when the asset is de-recognized

The Company assesseswhetherthere is any indicationthatan asset may be impaired ateach balance sheetdate. lf any
such indicatlon exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. lf such recoverable amount of
the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction istreated as an impairment loss
and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. lf at the balance sheet date there is an indication that the
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset ls

reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of amortized historical cost impaired earlier. Such
reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less

costs to sell.

Once classified as held for sale, intangible asset, property, plant and equipment and investment properties are no
longer amortized or depreciated.

s6

3.3 lmpairment ofTangible and lntangible assets

3.4 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a

sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset is

available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales
of such assets and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

3.5 Foreign currency transactions and balances:

lnitial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions (other than advance receipt or payment of foreign currency) are recorded using the

exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign

currency transactions settled during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The forelgn

currency transactions received or paid in advance are accounted at the date of receipt or payment of foreign

currency.

T.anslation:
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated using

the foreign exchange rates as at the balance sheet date. The resultant exchange dlfferences are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss

Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are carried at historical cost are not translated

Forward exchanBe contracts entered into to hedge and manage foreign currency exposures relating to highly
probable transactions or firm commitments are marked mark to market and resulting gains or losses are recorded
In the statement of profit and loss.

The trade receivables are recognized when right to consideration is established on transfer of control of goods and
services and on fulfilment of performance obligation related to goods and services. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provislons of the instrument.

Classifi cation and subsequent measurement:

Financial assets:
On initial reco8nition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost or
- Fair value through profit or Loss (FWPI-)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period, the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
AS At FWPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

31

3.6 Financiallnstruments:
Recognition and initial measurement:
A financial asset or financial liability other than those items that are not at fair value through profit and loss (FWPL)

is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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Financial assets at FWPL

All financial assets that do not meet the criteria for measurement at amortized cost are measured at FWPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or are measured at FWPL, if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subs uent measurement and gains and losses:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment
losses. lnterest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and

impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on

derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

lmpairment
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets and

unbilled revenues which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables and

unbilled revenues with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For

all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECl. unless

there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at
lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at

the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in

statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and Sains and losses:

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as

measured at FWPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial

recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any

interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method. lnterest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are

recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition:

Financial assets:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial

asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially

all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither

transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the

financial asset.

lf the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains

either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not

derecognized.
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Financial liabilities:
The Company derecognizes a financlal liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.
The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. ln this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liabllity with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting:
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives are
initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurements
The company follows the following mentioned underneath hierarchy for determining fair values of its financial
instruments:

o Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
. Level 2 - lnputs other than quoted prices included in Level l that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and
o Level 3 - lnputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
dates. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and

regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The fair value for these instruments is

determined using Level 1 inputs.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over the counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. lf all

significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is fair valued using level 2

inputs.

lf one or more ofthe significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is fair valued

using level 3 inputs. Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
o The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows

based on observable yield curves
. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the

reporting dates, with the resulting value discounted back to present value

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the

remaining fi nancial instruments.
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3.9

3.8 lnvento.ies:
lnventories are valued on the principle laid down by lnd AS 2 "lnventories" on the basis given below:

Cash and cash equivalents:
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into and cash and
have original maturities ofthree months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term bank
deposits with original maturity ofthree months or less.

3,10 Taxation:
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current Tax:

Current Tax is determined as the amount of income tax payable to the taxation authorities in respect of taxable
income for the period.

The Company's current tax is calculated using applicable tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end ofthe reporting period.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax ls recognized on temporary differences between the carryinB amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statement and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not recognized of the temporary difference arises from initial recognitlon (other than in a business

combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognized on

assessment of reasonable certainty about reallzation of such assets.

Raw Materials, Stores & Spares (that are not
capitalized), Fuel and Packing Material

Lower of cost (determined on weiBhted average
basis) and net realizable value.

Work-in-Progress

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
direct materials, labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
ca acity

Finished Goods

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
direct materials, labour, a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity

4o

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance

Sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
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current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the
taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

3.11 Share Capital
Equity Shares are classified as equity.

l.l2 Revenue from Contract with Customers

The Company's revenue was primarily comprised of sale of pigments.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price after netting trade discounts, volume discounts, sales
returns and goods and service tax excludinB the estimates ofvariable consideration that is allocated to that
performance obligatlon. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or
services to customers.

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligation by
transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point of
time. Performance obligations are said to be satisfied at a point of time when the customer obtains controls of
the goods / services rendered.

lnterest income:
lnterest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Sale of Scrap

Revenue from sale of scrap is recognized on sale.

3.13 EmployeeBenefits:

Defi ned contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions

into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for

contributions to recognized provident funds and approved superannuation schemes which are defined

contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense and charged to the statement of profit and

loss as and when the services are received from the employees
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Export benefits:
The benefit accrued under Remission of Duties and Taxes on Export Products (RoDTEP) Scheme, Duty Drawback
Scheme as per the Export and lmport Policy in respect of exports made under the said Schemes is accounted on
an accrual basis and is included under the head "revenue from operations" as 'Export lncentives'. Export benefits
available under prevalent schemes are recognized in the year when the right to receive credit as per the terms of
the scheme is established in respect of exports made and are accounted to the extent there is no significant
uncertainty about the measurability and ultimate utilization/ realization of such duty credit.
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Defined benefit plans:
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's
net obligation in respect of gratulty plan, which is a defined benefit plan, and certain other defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefits that the employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periodsi that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value. An unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company's obligations. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. ln case of funded defined benefit plans, the fair value of the plan
assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognize the obligation on net
basis.

Retirement and other employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentive, paid annual leave, bonus, leave
travel assistance, medical allowance, contribution to provident fund etc., recognized as actual amounts due in
period in which the employee renders the related services.

(i) A retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the
contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contribution to the
fund accrues. There are no obligations other than the contribution payable to the recognlzed Provident
Fund.

(ii) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation
on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. The Company has established a

gratuity trust to provide gratuity benefit through annual contributions to a Gratuity trust which in turn
contributes to Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia (LlC). Under this plan, the settlement obligation
remains with the Gratuity trust. Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia administers the plan and determines
the contribution premium required to be paid by the trust.

(iii) Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result ofthe unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-

term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided

for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions

and the resultant actuarial gains/(losses) are recognized immediately in the statement of other comprehensive

income.

3.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contintent Assets:

Provisions:
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past

event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be

made ofthe amount ofthe obligation.
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3.15

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. lf the effect of the tlme value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

When some or all ofthe economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities:
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a

contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for: -

(i) possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company, or

(ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Contintent assets:

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements, when an inflow of economic

benefits is probable.

lnterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) from continuing operations and the total profit/

(loss) attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of

equlty shares outstanding during the period.

4s

3.14 Borrowing costs:
Borrowing costs worked out are determined on effective interest rate, directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction, or production of quallfying assets, that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their

intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until the assets are substantially ready for their

lntended use or sale.
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For calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit/(loss) from continuing operations and the total profit/(loss)
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period after
adjusting the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.15 Cash FIow Statement
The cash flow statement is prepared using "indirect method" set out in lnd AS 7 on "Cash Flow Statement" and
presents the cash flows during the period by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

3.L7 Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of
the reportinB period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the Standalone Financial Statements.
Non-AdjustinB events after the Balance Sheet date which are material in size or nature are disclosed separately
in the Standalone Financial Statements.

3,18 Segment Reporting
ln accordance with lnd AS 108, Operating Segments, the company identified manufacture and sale of Pigments as

the only reportable segment.

3.19 Standards issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 3t,2023, MCA amended
the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1st, 2023, as below:

(i) lnd AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
This amendment requires the entitles to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
Aptil !, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in
the financial statements.

(ii) lnd AS 8 - AccountinB Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
This amendment has introduced a definition of'accounting estimates'and included amendments to lnd AS 8 to
help entities distinguish changes ln accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The definition of a

change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new

definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement

uncertainty''The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,

2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

(iiil lnd AS 12 - lncome Taxes
This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this

amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment

and there is no impact on its financial statements.
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4 Property Plant and Equipment

Parti':ulars

rosr Block

As at 31J)3-2021
Additrons (nefer Note (r))

Diepolals ustments

As at 31'03-2022

4.1 Break'up ol-gQpilal!ryqlL!!:Elgglgls

Tangible A5!ets under Construction in the
nature of

As at 31st
March 2022

Expense lncurred
during the Year

1,702.41
4,038.08

Land Advancc for land Purchase
guildings

PIant & Machinery

Elestocal lnstallation
lntanSible Aasets acquired

Project txpenditure - Direct

Salafles and wages
- Professional & Consultancy Charges

Other Direct Expeises

Finance aosts+.
(r\

{ in Lakhs

Land Building Plant & l\,lachinery
Equipments

Office
Equipment tixtures

Total
CapitalWork-in

proSress

972 _23

0.17
o.71 t.12

0.13
0.99

0.50
975.05

712.33

1.08 1.12 1.12 975.55 5,446.59Ealanc€ as at 31{3-2C22 912.21

972.23

Balance as at 31-03-2022

888.94

ntsother Adjustme

2

Dr

21.69

0.23

22.77

3.41

4.53

49.69

0.16

so.81

2,320.85 5,049.41

9.41

o.7l

420.60

0.32

0.32

Additicns

Balan.e as at -11.43-2023

0.01
o.22

0.00
0.16

7,445.05

0.01
0.70

Aacumulated depreciation

As at 01-04-2021
Charge for the year

58.30 227.2C 2.90 2.03 8.64 299.O1

Olher Ad

Charge for the year (refer note {ii))

58.30 227.20 3.13Balance a< :r 3t'03-2023 2.3s 8.80 299.78

Ne: carryrng aiioun:: I I

0-85972.23 0.80 0.96 974.84
4,422,2L 19.64 42.01 4,L20.82

registered in the name ofthe company subject to Iulfilment olother terms and conditions.

252.55 2.18As at 3143-2023

(ii) italised durin th€ year l0 36lakhs (previous year < 0.71 lakhs

Capitalized during As at 31st
Marah 2023

(117.0s)

(81.8e)
(136.43)

(48.98)

(2,r.98.4s)
(4,775.9s)

(49.69)

101.14

20.83
753.62

888.945,445.59

101.14

1,116.87
1,492.49

49.69

2,851.80

33.12
1s.60
18.49

24.40

(7,409.44j IttIotrl

I

972.73

r

83.93

69.29
120.6G

12.22

,.oo
2.72
7.63



F,Y. 2022-23 < in Lakhs

cwtP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

less than 1

Year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More
than 3

years
Total

Projects in progress:

Pigments

Prorects temporarily suspended

888.94 888"94

Total 888.94 888.94

4.2 CW|P schedule

4.3 CwlP,whose co letion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its ori nal an

To be completed in

Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More
than 3
years

Total

$..o\

F.Y.202t-22 < in Lakhs

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than I
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More
than 3

Years

Total

4,734.26 712.33 5,446.59

4,734,26 7L2.33 5,446.59

To be completed in

cwtP Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More
than 3

years
Total

Total
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5 Other intangible assets

t in Lakhs

Pa rticu la rs Computer Software

Gross Block:

As at 01-04-2021

Additions
Disposals / Adjustments
Balance as at 31-03-2022

Additions
Disposals / Adjustments
Balance as at 31-03-2023

1.86

1.86

Accumulated depreciation:
As at 01-04-2021

Charge for the year

Other Adjustments
Balance as at 31-03-2022

Charge for the year

Other Adjustments
Balance as at 31-03-2023

0.18

0.18

Net carrying amount:
As at 31-03-2022

As at 31-03-2023 1.68
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I in takhs
As at

S. No Particulars
3lst March 2022

6 Other FinancialAssets - Non - Current
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security deposit 13.65 9.00

Total 13.65 9.00

As at

{ in Lakhs
As at

{ in Lakhs

As at

S. No Particulars
3lst March 2023 31st March 2022

7 Deferred tax liabillty (net)

Deferred tax liability:
Depreciation

Deferred tax assets:

Unabsorbed business loss

Unabsorbed depreciation
Preliminary Expense u/s 350
Expense disallowed u/s 438

- Bonus

- Leave Encashment

744.41

L48.41

74.5s
'7 .62

L.20

0.71

84.14

Total 64.27

S. No Particulars
3lst March 2023 31st March 2022

8 Other Non - Current Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good
CapitalAdvances

lncome taxes (Net)

Deposits for the leased premises

Prepaid expenses

135.59

0.73
1.31

9.8s

18.51

0.58
0.13

Total 747.48 L9.22

S. No Particulars
31st March 2023 3lst March 2022

9 lnventories
Raw materials and components
Fuel

Packing Material
Stores & Spares

Work in progress

Finished goods

Finished goods in Transit

775.74
3.60

6.73

57.44
444.64

744.77

66.29

51.35

7.94

1.24

Total 838.51 54.53

+r

31st March 2023

{ in Lakhs



{ in Lakhs

S. No Particulars

As at

31st Mar.h
2023

31st

March
2022

10 Trade Receivables
- Considered good - secured
- Considered good - unsecured
- Having significant increase in Credit Risk

- Credit impaired

tess: Provision for Expected Credit Loss

178.48

178.48

Total 178.48

Trade Receivables agelnt s.hedule as at 31.03,2023 { in Lakhs

Trade Receivables ageing s.hedule as at 31.03.2022 < in Lakhs

Panicula.s Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from no due

date of payment

Less than
6 months

6

months -

l year

t-2
yearr

2-3
years

More
than 3
years

Total

{i)
(i,
(iii)

{iv)

Undisputed Trade Receivables ' considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

Total

Particulars Not Oue

Outstanding for following perlods from due date
ol payment

Less than
6 months

5
months -

l year

1-2 2-3

Yea,s

More
than 3
years

Total

{i)
(it)

(iii)

(iv)

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

t 78.48 778.4A

Total 178.48 L78.48
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{ in takhs
As at

S. No
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

11 Cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
(i) Cash on hand
(ii) Balances with banks

ln current account

0.37

111.34 747.47

Total L17.77 181.50

t in Lakhs

As at
S. No Particulars

3lst March 2023 31st March 2022

72 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Margin money with banks* 7.65

Total 7.55
* Under Lien to avail Letter of Credit facilities

As at
5. No Particulars

3Ist March 2023 31st March 2022

13 Loans

Loans & Advances to Employees
- considered good - Unsecured 0.45

Total o.29 0.45

I in Lakhs
As at

S. No Particula.s
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

74 Other Financial Assets - Current
lnterest accrued on Deposits

Other amounts receivable*
Balance with Gratuity Fund (Net)

0.65

3.35

712.29

Total 4.00 772.29

I R€ceivable from holding company.

{ in Lakhs

As at
S. No Particulars

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

15 Other Current Assets

Advances other than capital advances:

Balance with GST & Customs

Advance to suppliers
Prepaid expenses

Export incentives recervable - dutv free scrips

993.24
L4.25

7.46
9.39

760.9s

0.16
0.14

Total 1,O24.34 761.25

50

Particulars

0.03

I in Lakhs

\

0.29

I
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15.1 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year
Authorised share capital:

Balance as at lst April,2021
Add / {Less): Changes during the year

Balance as at lstApril 2022

{ in Lakhs

Noh Cumulative
Equity Shares of { Redeemable

10 each Preference shares of
<1,000/- each

No. of shares

Non Cumulative
Optionally
Convertible

Preterence sha,er o,
{1,00O/- each

2,21,00,000 2,20,000

Ai at

31rt March 20225. No Particulars

3,640.00

3,250.00

380.00

2,210.00

2,200.00

7,270.00 4,410.00

3,325.00

2,200.00

380.00

2,207.00

2,200.00

5,905.00 4,401.00

16

Authorised

3,64,00,000 l3tst March 20221 2,21,00,000) Equity Shares of I 10/' each

3,25,000 (31st March 2022:2,20,000) Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference

shares of < 1,000/- each carrying coupon raleol 7.5%

38,000 (31st March 2022:Nil) Non Cumulative Convertible Preference shares of <
1,000/- each carrylng coupon rate of 7.5%

lssued, subrcribed and fully paid-up shares

3,32,50,000 (31st March 2022].2,2O,7O,000l. Equity Shares of { 10/- each fully paid

up.

2,20,000 ( 31st March 2022- 2,20,000) Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference

shares of11,000/- each carrying coupon rateol 7.5%

38,000 ( 31st March 2022- Nil ) Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference
shares of { 1,000/- each carrying coupon rateol 7.5%

Less: Reclassification of Preference Share Capital as Non Current Financial Liability
(Refer Note 18)

Share capital

(2,s80.00) (2,200.00)

Total 3,325.00 2,20L.00

Ealance as at 3lst March,2023 t,3 50,000 000

Add / (Less Cha durin the aa

Ealance a5 at 3lst March,2023

lssued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital:

Balance as at lst April,2021
Add / {Less): Changes durinC the year

Balance as at lst April 2022

Add / Less)rCha s duringthe year

2,2t, 20

1,43,00,000 1,05,000
3,64,00,000 3,25,000

10,000

2,20,O0,O00 2,20,000

2,20,70,000 2,20,000

t,r2,40,o00

38,000

18,000

No. of shares

38,000

d! ou

lcc

5T

I

Non cumurative Non cumulative I

Equity shares of t Redeemable optionally

10 each prefe.ence shares of convertible

t1,ooo/- each Prefe'ence shares of
{1,000/- each

315t March 2023



16.2 T€rms/rEhs an.chcd to Shares

(alEquityShares

(ilIhe Equity shares are having a parvalue of I 10/- and each holder of equity rhares is entiled to one vote per share.

lli) ln the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shar€s will be entitled to receive any ofthe remaining

assets ofthe Company, after dhtribution of all pref€rential amount. The distribution will be proportlonate to the number of
equityshares held by the sh.re holders.

(bl llon cumulative Red.cmable Prefcren.e Sharer (NCRPsl

(a) The Non Cu mulative Redeemabl€ Prefe rence s h.res a re having a pa r va lue of \ 1,000/'

(ii) The Holder ofNCRPS rhallbe entitled to dividend of7.5 % per annum (non cumulative)on the facevalue of NCRPS

(ili) The Redemption shall be from FY 2027'28 (3 Yearly instalments) or such other period as may be agreed mutuallY

(c) Non Cumulariv€ Optionally Convertible PreIcr.fte sha.e! ( COCPSI

(i) The Non Cumulative Optlonally Convertible Preference shares a.e having a parvalue of11,000/_

{ii) The Hold€r of NCOCPS shallbe entitled to dividend of7.5 % perannum (non cumulative)on the face value of NCOCPS

(iii)The NCOCPS shall be redeemed or coovened (as mutually agreed)aft€rthe FinancialYear 2027-28 or such other pe.iod as

rnay De agreed murually b€tween both the panies.

on 31st Mar 22

Equity shares

Number ot fully
paid-up sh.r€s as

on 31st March 23

2,20,10,000
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each - Ultramarine & Plgments Limited - HoldinS Company
As at 31st March,2023- 100% (3lst March 2022-100%)

3,32,50,000

rnore than 5% shares15.3 oetails ofshareholdErs hold

15.4 oetaals of sharehold

A5 at 31st March 202! As at 31st Mar 2022

% ofTotalShar€s No, ofshares

3,32,50,000 100% 2,24,70,4O0 r00%

As at 31it Ma.2022

too%

As at 31st March 2023

3 1,OO%

% oiTotal

Equltyshares
Ultramarine & Pigment5 Llmited - Holding Company
Total

% oI TotalSharer No- of shares

2,2O,OOO 100% 2,20,000 r00%
Non Cumulative R€d€€mable Preference lhares of {1,000/- ea.h
Ultramarine & Pigments Limited - Hoiding Company
lotal 2,20,000 too% 2,20,000 too%

X Change

durint th€

% Chengc

durint th€

o%

o%

As at 31st Mar 2022As at 31el March 2023

% olTotalShares
% of Tot.l

shares

:t8,000 100% c%

Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preferenc€ shares oI11,000/- cach

Ultramarine & Pigmenrs Limited Holding Company

Total 38,000 100% 0%

,6 Charye
duringthe

100%

too%

I in Lakhi

S. No
31st Mar(h 2022

Other Equity
Share Application Mon€y P€nding allotment
General reserve
Retained Ea.ninSs
Other Comprehensive lncome - Remeasurement of Return on Arset

300 00 134.00

13.10)29181
(0.07)

Total 597.80 130.90

I

5z

I

x otrotal 
I

shares I

I

I

1,7

31st March 2023



1A EorrowlnSs - Nor4rert

Ierm Lo.n lrom B.nklRet€r not.13-l and 18,21

L.ss: cur.nt matlrlw ol lona r.rm debt (reler Nor.: 21)

Ierm loan tiom Boldins comp.rv {Refer not.13.3)
L.$: cur.nt maturity of lonr t..m debt keLr Not.:211

7.50% No. Comulative R.d..m.ble Peferln..Sh... capital (neler nol. 18.4)

7-5Cl Non Cumulative Option.lly Convertlble Pr.t.r.rce share capltal(Refer note
18.s)

2,477.OO
(122.91)

1,505.00
{11.45)

2,20O.0O

3ao,0o

1,125 00

550.00

2,200.00

5.427.53 3,875.00

14.1

The cohp.nv has availed san.rioned termlo.n of<22soL.khsf.omArh 8ank. Th.ldn i5 5ecured bymong.g. ofindu5lrial
plotofL.nd, movablenxed as3.Bend cu.ienl a$.t5 ofthecodpanv.nd charr. ha3 b...o.atedforlix.d and curc.t set3.

The lo.. carries interestrat. in the r.nse of 6.7s% to 9.2s% p.a and h.s. horatorium p.rlod ol24 mo.ths.nd i5 r.pavabl. in
15 quan.rlv instalments b.ti.ning lrom odob.., 2023.

132

The compa.y availed te.m loa. oll227 Lrkhr dunng the vear olt ol5lhctioned term lo.n of < 1,s25 Lalhs by HsBc sank. Th.
loan n i.cur.d by movabl. fix.d asset and.!rr.nr ast.is of the cohp.ny end cha.Ee h.r b.en created lor nxed and cuii.nr
a$etr.Th.lo.nc.rriesint.r.3trat.lntherang.ot5.75%to8.52%p.aandhasamor.toriumperiodol24mohths.ndh
repayable ln 16q!arterlyinst.lm.nt! beginninglrom June,2024.

The.omp.ny has availed a t..m lo.n ofl1,505 L.kh5 out of san.tion.d terh lsn of ! 2,594 tlkhs by the holdina company

duriqth. y.arc.rryin8lnt.r.rr rate in the r.^s. oi 6,75r( to 9.2s% p.. with 2 y.ars o, hor.iorium tom th. l.tt disbuEemenl
emount.nd is r.paFble rn 16 q uan.rly itutalm.nB b.ainnina lrom rh. mnth ot M..ch,2024.

Non Cu6ul.riv. Rcdeemable Pr.Lr.nc. share c.pit.l{NcRPs) shallb..nrirled to dlvid.nd of 7.s% per anhum (non

cumul.tiv.).rh.NcRPssh.llb.r.d..hedbelinninsfrohtheFln.nci.lY..r2o2T.2Sln3Y.arlvinstalment3o.3uchothe.
period.i m.v be agreed muru.llybetween bolhth. Darties, fiodivlde.d was .ecomm.nded .nd de.iared du.ing the year,

Non Cunul.rive optDnally conv.rible Pref.r.n.. Sh.r. capltal(NcoCPS) shallbe enrirl.d to dividend oi 7.5 % gcrannum

{non cumolativ.). The NCOCP5shal be redeem.d or.onverted lar mutuallyasre.d)aft.rfinancialyear 2027-28orruch oth.r
period ar maybeagreed mutuallv between both th. parri.s. Nodivide.d w.s recomh.hd.d.nd d.clar€d durln8 theyear.

2!

Ierm ton ftoh B.nk - Curcnr roru.iti$ ol lont t..m debt (ReLr Ft 18,

wo.ti4 .!pii.l l@n tEh . 8..k (R.fer Nore 21.21

TermLo.nfromHoldintcornp..y-co entm.tun!.sof LongterhdebtlReler

worki.g Gprtal-Bridge lo.n rrom holdi.g.ompary lRef.r Note 21.3)

122.91

229.47

17.46

othe, fn.ncral li.bilities - No. cu.rent
Retention monev paYabl. 643 6612

6.33

20 P.ovlsioB - Non<rent
Prdision tor.mploy.e b.n.fi rs
Prdisio. lor cohD.ns*.d .brlnces

2.41

211

Ihe comp.nv has availed cr.ditt crlltles (both fund bared and.on-lu.d b.5ed)frcm a Bank(Aris Bank-Rr.1Crcr., and are
secur.d by lint ch.rge on hypoth.cauon ot ste* (raw Baieri.k and fini.hed goodr.nd book debts ot th. comp.nyand
second ch.r8. on liled.si.t! ln.luding landa.d burldi.!. riowever, no.rount rsouBt.ndins {fund b.s.d a.d.onfund
based) a3 on 315t M.rch,202a.

21.2

TheCompahyhasavailedcredtfaciliries{bothlund based and non-luid bated) from:8ank {HSBC Bank-Ri.5 Crores)and are
secu.ed by charge on hvpothrc.tion ol stocks (r.w materials and fl.i5h.d goods) and book debti of the compa.y. Among
whichI2.55(or.s has been !t liz.d.s06 31st March 2023

213
The Compa.Y has .a iled . rhon te.m Workina C.pit.l - Aridge l@^ trom lhe hoid rnB comgany for I 70 h khs, during rhe y.ar
carryi.8 a. r^te.estEte in the rang. oia.65%to9.25% a.d reDayabl.ondemand

ti

il
rz

13.3

La.5

I

i

| ,*r.*.0.,



t in Lakh!

' Amou.ts p.y.bl€ to 21'22:17.10 Lakhs)

3lrt March 202231st M.rch 2023SNo

6.88

110.45

y.20

72.52

22

- Totalout5tanding dues of micro enterprises.nd smau enterprises

- Iotal ouBanding dues ofcreditoE otherthan micro enterynseand small

t06.72117,33

Outstanding for followint perlods from d ue date of p.Yment

Tr.d€ p.y.bl$.8cln8 r.h.dul. for th. y€.. end.d 31rt March 2023

(i)MsME
(ii) Othels
(iii) Dirputed dues - MsME
iivlDisDuted du* - Other!

22,27
6.8E

88.18

6.88
110.45

2?.27 95.06 117.33

22.2
Tr:d€ p.y.blerrtelu tchedu le for th€ ye.r endcd 31st March 2022
(D MSME
(ii)(xhert
(iii)Oisputed dues - MSME
livloisouted duer - Other5

34.20
72.52

:t4.20
12.52

106,72 106.72

22.!

s. No
31st March 2023 31rt Ma.ch 2022

23 other fn.n.i.l ll.bllhl.s - Currcnt
Credito.rto. capnalSoodr {Refer Note 23.1)

l.ter€st payable on T€rm Lo.n (refer note 23.2)

Amount payabl€to Hold int comp any lrefer note 23.3)

Retenlion money p.yable

oth€.finahcral liabilirie! lrefer note 23.3)

180.48

8.79

980.82

6.41

0.35

343.00 7,776.45

Caprtal credtor lnrlud€ MSIrE Creditorof I 7.13 lakhs (PY<14.21)

2!,2 lnterert pava ble on term loan includes interett payable to Holdint company l46.781akhr (31n March 2022 l2.34lakhs)

Amountspiy.bleto Holdint Company t 130.82 Lakhs 131st March 2022r1981.18 Lakh,

5. No
31rt March 2023 31rt March 2022

Oth.r arrr.nt li.bllltL.

Reven!e received in adv.nce
Other Uabilita.t

!2.52 307

17.05 t.07

23,1

24

5, No
31tt March 2023 31rt March 2022

For Employe. b.nefits
P.ovrsion for compensated absences

Provision fortax (net ofadvance tax)

2.08

(0.00) 10.00)

2.08 10,00)

25

E

s+

I

23.3

I

5r.46 |

45.73 I

1ro s, I

100.38 I

12.56 |

I



Ultramarln€ SpecialtyChemicals Umited
Notes to tin.ncial statements fo.the period 2sth.luly to 31it March,2023

S. No
As at

315t March 2023 31st M.rch 2022

26 Revenue From Operations
a) Sale oI Products

Sale of manufactured Boods

b) Other Oper.ting Revenues
Export lncentives

1,592.35

22.61

Total 1,615.02

S. No Particulars
As at

3lst Mar.h 2023 31st March 2022
26.1 Dlsaggregate Revenue lnlormation:

Manufactured goods

Pigments 1,592_35 0

1,592.35 0

< in Lakhs

< in Lakhs

I in Lakhs

Particular5

Other lnaome

a) lnterest income
lnterest on EB Deposit
lnterest on lT Refund

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

0.65

0.01

o.27
o.57

Total 3.60

S. No

27

S. No

2a

51.3s

59-o.44

1L5.74

{ in Lakhs

28.1 The followinS materials consumed & expense incurred durint the period oftest & trielprocuction which

51.35

s48.09

were not inal{rded in the respectlve expenditure accounts

Consun1pt:on of Raw Material
Salaries & WaBes

Payment to Contracto15
Pou/er & Fuel

Particulars
3lst March 2022

Opening stock of Raw material

Add; Purchase of Material(Refer Note 28.1)

Less: Closing slock of Raw material

Cost of material consumed

51.35

51.35

Total 483.70

221.96Total

115.62
37 58
77.47

57.19

r(

:l
I

:l
I

I

b) Other non-operating income (Netof expenses directly
attributable to such income)
Sundry balance written back

Sundry receipts

c) Other gains ahd losles
Net gains on foreign currency transactions and translation 2.1.0

31st March 2023

tl



29 ahanges in hvedtories ol Flnlshed 8oods, Sroclln-Trade and work-in-progress
hventorlei at $. €nd ot th€ year

655.10

lnventorler .t tte belinnlngoftn. t..r
work-in-pro3iees keter note 29.1) 11195

111.95

{543-1s)
29.1 valu. ot produ.ts produced durin8 the perlod olrest & trial p,oduction

30 anploYec Benail Erpenre
s.lari.s, w3B$, Bonus:.d other benelits

Contributionto Provident Flrd and otherfhds

St.f Wellar. ard ameniti.s
Paymeht to @ntradors

119.25
10.20

1.12

13.91

117.55

262.O4

31
l.t.rcsr on T.rm lc.slrom Bankr
r^reretr on Term L@n i.om noldinS comp.ny
lnr.rest on working.apitaLLoan from 3.nk3
lnterest on working caplla l@r hom Holdi.S .omp.ry

lnterc5t on incohe tat PaYments
L.$; Tranif .red to caplr.l work-in-Progress

209.rL 0.03

32 2L

!.03
\32.221

38.90

1.60
!.37
5.83

22.70

3.49

0.92

71.47
o62
5.13

1.95
27.r2

7.74

22.40

227.1\ 1,99

ll, FEyDErt to alditor. lhGludcd ln mL.lllaneoor ape.*5)

2.00

1.25

i r.95

Co.sumption ot Stor$ and Sp.res

P..king !xp.ne.s and m.t.riak conruhed
Repairs.nd M.lntenan.!;

M.chinary
Buildings

Oth.re

lrciaht.nd Fotuarding erp.n5es

Adv.rtisement.nd sales promotion.xeenset

Tr.velli.g & Conveycnc. .xp.nses
communi4tion .rpenr.s
L.g.l and Prot.isio.al Feei

Mls.ella.eo!e.!penret (Note li) b.low) 195

craJue'

5'

83.26
5.51

0.17
o.01

(56.62)



Uhr.m.rlne sp€cialty Ch€mloL Umlted
Noter to llnan.lai nateme.ts lor ihe year ended 3tsr Ma,.h,2O2:t

33 Co.tingeni liabllltlee .nd commitme s {io th. elr€it not provid.d fo4

Thecompanyhasrecognisedthefo owngamount5 nthestatehentolproltand o$;

li) claih3 a8.inn rh. Comla.y/dLpot.d ti.brtiri.s nor
acknowl.ds.d.t d.bts in caped ot labourdttpur.t
Iii) Bank Gu.Eht..3 iitued ..d outstandi.g
{iii) Letter ol cEdlt is5ued and outstandlng

li) PDpe.ty, Pl.nt & Equipmnt - Estimted ..@nt ol
.o.tB.b Eminlnl to b. er€cuted on @eit l.eount.nd

AEaitut whl.h .dvan4 paid

552.t

115.57

,83,s5

lE.51

IAI Defned contrlbutlon Plan

-rhe Comp.ry m.ker Prdident Fund .onfibotiont to definen cont,ibution pl.ns fo. qualifyingemployee3. U.d.rrhe schemet, rhe
Comp:ny i5 r.q!r.d to co.tribote a spe.in.d p.rc.ntage ol the p:vrellco5t5 to tud the benefits, Th. co.tributio.s paFbl. bv th.
comp.ny.rc at r.t.s speilied in the rul€s otth.3.h.m4.

3t MaEi 202t
:.Contrblto. ro Ehploveei Provident Fuhd 10.20

10.20

I3l Defn.d coni'lbdlon Plrn
GEtulty ls p.Fbl. to allmmbe6 at the 6t. ot 15 day3 talaryforeach compl.kd y.ar ofsepice.

1, Re.onciliatio. ol ooenin. ..d .loslm balances ol cr.tuiw oblisatlon

31Mar.t 2023 31March 2022
a. Defined be..ir ob,.garion .r the beginnhgol rhc y...

d.Benefft p.ym?ni! oue but enp.id

e. Be.efirs Pard dir.ctly byehplot€r
f. BeneUts Paid f.om flnd
a.Rem€:surcm.nis-Flna.ciala$!mptions.nd Erperien.eadjustments

0,76

h, Defined ben€tlt obllgatlor at iie e.d ol the y.ar 1.29

2. ieconciliation ol openlng ard cl05in8 bal.ncet ofral, valu€ of plan arret5

3l Mardr 2023

a, FairValu. ol Pla. A5s.ts at the Begnin^ing ol th. ye.r
b. Adju$ment to op..ing balan.e
c, E pect.d R.rurnon Pl.nA$ets
d. contributlo. bV th. Ehployer
e. Senefits Pald frcm the funds

f. Remea.lr.m.nh - Retu.n on A$ets

0,u

p, Falr value of Plan asels at the End of the vear 4.55

3. ErD€ns€s r..ocnl*d in the statement ol Proit .nd Lo$

:tl March 2023

b.Benent Payme.rs due b!t unpaid

e.Expe.ted retun on p.n.ss.ts
f. Net Act!ariaL t6aLn)/Loss

0.78

0.t1

to.r"t
0.07

g. Tot.lExpenrs recqnised rn $atement oi prof r and Lo5s 1.13

4. a ount re@snlsed ln rhe B.lan.e Shet

a. Present valoe ol B.nefit obligation at the end olth.

b. Fak Valu. ol Pl.n a$.ts.t the End oflh. ye.r

1.29

t..5el
c. Funded statle suQlus / {Defi

E

d, Net uabllrty/ lA5et) Recosnised in th. 6ala.ce rheel

31March2023

(3.151

s1



5. Oihe, Com9rehenslve lncome (OCll

ll March 2023 31M.rch 2022
N.m.8ur.h.nt5 ' Fir.n.ial assumptions .nd Experien.. adj!slm.nts
R.m.aior.m.nB - R.turn on Arset5 0.07
Toialactuari.l (caln)/Los5 recoenised ir OCI 0.07

6. 0ee.rlption otDldn.15Ets

31 M.r.i 21123 31Math2022

b D.bti.st,umenB & CorpoEt Bonds

c. C.th & Ca3h Equiv.lent

4,65
4.65

7. Actuarlal.isumptlon5

31M.rch 202! 3l March 2022

b Salary Ercalatioh R6te

7.51*
8.50r

lndlan Aseured Uves Mortality
12012-14)

8,lrpected tulu.e c.5h fows as on:

Maturlry Profl! o, Deflned seneft Obllgarlons
3l Marct 2023 3l March 2022

Pmlrt.d b.n.ft! p.f.ble in lilure yeaE trom th. d.t. of r!por!.8
0,01

0.01

0.56

0-31

0,29

0,59

SaB.irjcanl actuari.l.rsumpiionr for tn€ det.rhination ofthe d.lined b.n.fit oblig.tion.r. discount r.t..nd exp*ted s.l.ry incr€as.- Th. sEnsitivitY.naly3i3

b.low h.v. b..n der.rmined bas€d on r.asonahly possible chahg8 ofthe r4p.ctiv. .3somptions ecuring atthe end of the r.podins p.riod, whil. holdina all

oth.r.$umptionr.o.sLnt.
(ln l. khs

ER:5alaryEs.al.tion Rate

Ch..s. in Pr.sentv.lue Oblisation'ln./ {De.) (1.24)

-a.78%
1.34

4.07%
1_34

4.t3%
1.24

AlthouSh th..n.lysir doer not talc a.@unt of th€ fulldistibution of c.sh nNs.xp.ct.d underth. p1.., it des provide an approrid.tion of the 3.n3itivityof

th..s.omption! shown.

Th.s.pl.nttypic.llycxp6etheComp6nytoaduriairhkssuchas:rnv.sih.nrrtk,int.resttisk,long.vitYris*andsalaryrisk.

Ti. pr.t.ntvalu. ofthe defin.d b.n€Rt plan liability it 6l.ul.t.d !5in8. dircount rrt. which ie determined by referen.. to market

ti.lds.tth!.nd of ttre rcpo.tine pe.iod on sov.mment bonds. lfth..lturn on p1...5!.t is b.lowthis 6t., itwillcr6te Plan d.ficit

Th. pr6.nt v.lu. ot tfi. defined benefit plan liability ir.alculat.d u3ina. da5.o!ot..t. which it det.rmin.d by referenceto mark.t
yi.ldt ar th..nd ofih. r.porti.g period on gove.nme.t bonds. ll the r.turn o. pla..steti5 belowthis r:t , itwillcreate pl.. d.iicit.

Th. pr.rcnt v.lu. of the defined benent plan liebility is.alculated u5i.g a di3count r.t. which is determined by r.f€rence to market

vi.ld5 atthe end ol thc r€portins period on sov.rnoent bonds.lfthe r.t!.. on pl.n.35.t i3 bd4 this rate, it willd.ate plan deicit-

Th. pr.r.ntv.lu. ofthe defined b.n.fit plan liability is calcul.tcd !3ina a dt.o!.|r.t. which ir dct rmi.ed by reference to market

vi.tdt.trh. Gnd ofrhe r.portins period on sovernment bo6d5. ll th. r.torn oh pl.n.is.t ir b.lowthie r.t., itwillcreatE Dlen defi.it.

(d Amounts 8.cotr 5€.1 ln Statlment ot t'roit .nd tosr

Ouring th. Curr.nrtin.ncialy6r, no tax expe.sc h8 bee. reogni5.d in th. it t.m..t of Protit & l6s.nd.bo no prdision fot tat ha5

b..n reo..l.d .i li.bility.

o

I

EK

PVO DR.1% PVO ER+ 1% PVO ER. T%



[8] Recon.lll.tlon of effective Tax Rate

Year end€d 3lst Mar.h 2023
Paniculars

62 67

1.78
(0.19)

Tar usiog the company's domestic tar rate - Cur.entYear Tar
Rate 17.16%

tess:Effe.t of Other oifferences
lnterest capitalised for tax purposes

Depreciation capatalised in books

t7 -76%

0.49%
(0.0s%)

Tolal

34 Financialinstrum€nts

77.60% 64.21

All financial instru ments are initially recotnised and subsequently r€-measured atfairvalue as described below:

i) The fak value of investment in quoted Equityshares is measur€d at quoted price or NAV

ii) The fat value of Forward Foreign E(hang€ contracts is determined using forwa.d exchanSe rates at the balance sheet date.
iii) Allforeign cu rrenq denominated assets and liabilities aretranslat€d using exchange rate at reporting date ercept advance received or

paid.

iv) Thefairvalue of the remaining financialinstrLrments is determined using dicounted cash flow analysk.

B Financialinstrumentsbycat€gory

I in takhs

PARTICUTARS

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31rt March,2022
CARRYING

AMOUNT FAIR VATUE

CARRYING

AMOUNT

Financial astets at amortised cort:
Non-current f lnanrial assets

Other FinancialAssets

Other FinancialAssets ' Security Deposit 13.65 13.55 9.00 9.00
13.55 13.55 9.00 9.00

Curr€nt llnanclal assets

Trade receivables

cash and cash equivalents
Other bank batances

Other FinancialAssets - Other Rec€ivable

178.48

717.71

7.65
0.29
4.m

102.12

178.48

71.1.71

7.55

0.29
4.tJO

302.12

181.50 181.50

0.45
112.30
294.25

0.45
112.30
2!4.25

Tota I Finacia I Assets at Amortired cost 315.78 315.78 303.2s 103,25

Financlelliabilities held at amortised costr
Non - Curr.nt linancial l'rabilities
Eorowin8s - T€rm Loan From a Eank
gor.owingr - T€rrn Loan trom Holding Company
7.50% Non Cumulative Redeemable Prefer€nce Share capital

(Refer note 16.2)

7.50% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference

Share capital(Refer note 16.2)

Other financia I liabilities

2,417.OO

1,505.00
2,477.n
1,505.00

2,200.00 2,200.o0

380.00
6.83

380.00
6.83

1,125.00

550.00
1,125.00

550.00

2,200.00 2,200.o4

66.72 66.12

ts68.83 o558.83 3,94!.12 3,947.12
Current fi nancial liabilities
BorrowinF -ferm Loan From a Bank

Borrowangs -Term Loan From Holdint Company
working capital loan f rom Banl
Eridge loan from holdinE companv

other financia I liabilities

122.97

229.47

70.00

117.33

343.00
894.57

!22.91
11.46

229.87
70.00

117.33

343.00
a94.57

105.72

1,776.86
1,283.58

706.12
'1,.776.86

1,243.58
Totallinancial liabilities carried at amonis€d cost I,453.40 7,463.40 s,224.7O 5.224.70

t

sq

365.24

The followinS table shows the carryin8 amount5 and fairvalues of fanancial ass€ts and finanrialliabilities, includingtheir l€vek in thefairvalue hierarchy.



C F.kvalue Hierarchy

tevel wise disdosure of Financial lnstruments

iii) Levelli lfon€ or mo.e of the significanl inputs ir not bas€d on obs€rvable mark€t data,the inttrum€nlit incllded in level3

The Company's policy i5 to r€congise lranrfers into and trafirfers out offairvalue hierarchy levels as atthe end of the reportint period.

f TNANCTAL A55ETs/FtNANCTAL LtAEIUTtES
HIERARCHY

TECHNIQUES& KEY

INPU5 USEO
31.03.2023 37.03.2022

Eorowings lncludingCurent BorrowinAt 4,475.24 1,575.00 Level2

2.200.00 2,2@.N

7.50% Non Cumulative Optionally Convenible Preference

Shar€ captal
380.00

35 Fin.ncl.lriskmanarment

fhe financialinstrumentr arecategorised intoThree lev€k bared on the i.puts usedto.rrive atlairvalue m€asurements as detcribed below:

i) Ievel! rev€lt hierarchy includes financial innruments measured using quored pices. This includes listed equity inst.uments, traded bondsand mutualtunds

that have quoted pice. Ihe f.tvalu€ ofaU equity instruments (includint bondt) which aretraded in the stock exchanges is valued usinSthe tlosint Pric€ a5 at

the regofting period.lh€ mutualtundt are valued usint the closang NAV.

ii) level 2r Ihe fan value of fina ncial lnnruments that a re not vaded in an activ€ mark€t (for erample, kaded bonds, over-the'count€r derivativet) is determined

usinttne valuation techniqoes which ma(mise the us€ of observable market data and rely as little as possibl€ on €ntity-rpe€ifc eitim.tes- lf allsiSnlficant inpLts

requiredto fatvalue an insvument..e obse.abl€, the inrtrument ir included in level2

The Company has .rposure lo the follo\Nin8 risli .rising from financial innrumentsr
-Cr€dit risk

'Liquidity rirt
-Market rirk
-lnter.n rate risk

Rlst msnatement t .mework

Th€ Company has a risk m.nagement pollcl which cover rkks associated with the financialalsets and liabilities. The risk mana$m€nt poliry is approved by the
Board of Dtectors.Ihe focus ofthe risk management committ€e is to asserr the unpredictability ofthe financaal envnonmnet and to mogate potenti.l.dvers€
effe6! on the ffnancial performan.e of the company.

Credit ritk E the risk oflinan.ral loss to the Company it a custom€r or co!.terpartyto a financial inltrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and aris€s
princiPallY from the Companys receivabl€5 ftom customeB, loans .nd investment in debt se.u rier. Ile Comparly €stablishes an altowance for doubtftil trade
receivables and impairment that repres€nts its enimate ot incured losses in respect oftrade ad oth€r receivabtes and investmentj.

The marimum expotureto credit risk in case of allthe financial instuments covered below ir re5tricted to their respective carrying.mount

However,there is no provision ronsidered necessary as ther€ was no overdue outstanding receivabler as on 3lst March 2023

The Compan/! €xposure to credit ritk is influenc€d mainly by the indavidual ch.Gctedstics of each cunomer. The demotraphics ofthe customer and inctuding
the def.ult ri5k ofthe andustry, also ha5.n influence on credi risk asseslment. Credit rist is manaSed through credit approvalr, est.btishing cr€dit limjtr and
continuo!sly monitorint the creditworthiness of customerr to which the Companygrants c.editterms in the normal.ourse of busin€sr.

Th€ Company measures$e eryected credit loss oftrade receivables based on historicalkend, indunry pladic€s andthe busin.ss environment in whichthe
entityop€rates. Loss rates are based on adualcredt lots erperaenc€ and pasttrends.

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

0-3 monrht
3-6 months

6 monthsto 12 monthr

Allowancefordoubtf!ltrad€receivables (Expededcredit

I78,48

178.46

6o

5

.d

Lev€l 3

n



FinancialAssets are considered to be of Sood quality and there is ;i8nificant increase in credit risk

Otherthan trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financialassets that are past due but not impaired

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company's ertablished policy, proceduras and control rclating to cuatomer credlt risk management. Credit quality of

a customer is assessed based on a credit rating scorecard and individual credit lihits are defined in accordance with thiS assessment, Outstanding customer

receivables are regularly monitored,

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

No of Customers who owed more than 10% oftheTotal receivables

Contribution of Customers in owing more than 10% ofTotal receivables

3

7L.W%

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held (ash and cash equavalents of I U1.71 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2023 (31st Ma.ch, 2022: t 181.50 Lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents are

held with banks.

B Liquidity risk

The tables below provide details rega.ding the contractual maturities of sign ifica nt fina ncial lia bilities as at

Ex to uidi risk { in Lakhs

C Market risk
Merket risk is the risk that the fair value or future carh flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices . Such changes in

values of financial instruments may result from changes in for€ign currency exchange rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company's exposure
to market risk is primarily on account of foreign currency exchange rat€ rist.

(al Foreign Cunency Exchange R.te Rlak

The Company undertakes tra niacllons denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations aaise. Exchange rate exposures
are managed utilising forward foreltn erchange contracts.

The following table analyres forelgn currency risk from financial instruments as of 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022

ln Lrkhs
Particulars USD

Aacounts Receivable

31 March 2023

3l March 2022

1.14

Accounts PayeUle

3l March 2023

3l March 2022 0.07

As at 31st March 2022Ar at 3lst March 2023

Cerrying amount - Contractualcash flows Carrying amount - Contractual cash flowsPaniculars

Upto l year More than l year Upto l year More than l year

Non-derivative fi nalr.ial liabiliti€s
Borrowings 434.24 3,982.00

7.50% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share capital 2,200.00
7.50% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference
Share capatal 380.00
Trade and other payables \11-33 746.72
Other financial liabilities 343.00 6.83 1,176.46

Tolal non-derivative fi nancial liabilities 894.57 6,s68.83 1,283.58

c

i/. ,61

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company willencounter difficulty in meeting the obligatioos associated with its financial liabilitiesthat are settled by delivering

cash or anotherfinancialasset. The responsibilityfor liquidity risk management rests with the board of dkectors, whlch has established an appropriate liquidity

risk ma nagem ent fra mework for the management ofthe Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term fundinS and liquidity management requirementS-

The Company manages liquidity risl by monitoring forecast and actualcash flows, maintaining adequate reserves and by matchingthe maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.



Foaeign curr€ncy s€nsitlvity analysis

The Companyis mainlye,(posed to the currency: USD

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% incr€ase and decrease in the Rupee againstthe relevantforeiSn currencies. The sensitivity analysis

includes only outsta nding foreign au rrenay denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% charge in foreign currencY rate

A positive number below indicates an increase in the profit or equitywhere the Rupee gtrengthens 596 against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakenlnS olthe

Rupeeagainstthe relevant currency, there would be a comparable impacton the profit orequity, and the balances below would be negative.

Partiaulars
ln Lakhs

USD

Excharge Rate

INR/USD

Exoort Transactions

3l March 2023

3l March 2022

1.14 81.70

lmoort Transactions

3l Marrh 2023

3l March 2022 0.07 76.O7

Particular5 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Floating Rata lnstrument
Sorrowings 4.476.24 1,675.00
Fixed Rate lnstrument
7,50% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share capital
7.50% Non Cumulative Optionally Convenible Preference Share capital

2,200.00

380.00

2,200.00

6,616.24 3,875.m

ct on rofit or Ioss and total ln Lakhs

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value orfuture rash flows of a financial instrument willfluctuate because of chanSes in market ioterest rates. The
company's exposuretothe risk ofchanSes in market interest rates relates primarilyto the company's lonS-term debt obliSations with floating interest rates.
The Company constantly monitorsthe credit markets and rebalances Itsfinancing strategiegto achieve an optimalmaturity profile and financing cost. The
Company manages it9 interest rate risk by havinga balanced portfollo of fjxed and variable rate borrowingt

Erposuae to lntercst l.t6 tisk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as follows

( in Lakhs

36 Related party disclosur€s

Director - Non- Executive

Director- Non- Executive

Director- Non- Executive

lndependent Director- Non- Executive

CompanySecretary

USO impact
As at

3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

lncrease in erchange rate bv 5% 4.61 (0.27)
Decrease in exchange rate by 5% 14,671 o.27

R€letivet of Xey ManaSerial Personnel

Mr. R. Sampath

Ms. Tara Parthasarathy

Mr. V. Bharatram
Mr. Navin M Ram

Mr. S. Remanan

Ms. Vidya Sampath

6z

D lnterest Raie Risk

1 Nemesorrel.ted partiei and nature ol reletlonship:

I'lature o, relationship

Holding Colnp.ny

tellowSubaldairy

Xey Manalement Personnel

l{ame of rehted pa.ty

LJltramarine & Plgments ttd

Ultramarine Fine Chemicals Ltd



Nature oftranta(tlons 2022-2' 2027-22

Pu.Gh.re of M.r.rl.l / stor.s
uhr.mari.e & Pigm.nts Limited

lJk6m.rine & Pigm.nts Limited

Ultam.rine & Pitm..ts Umited

Share Appllcatlon Money Rccelved

U tramanne & Pigments Limited

UlrEm.rin. & PiSmenrs Lim ted

Relmburre enrof Exp.nres
U tramanne & PrBmenG Lim ted

t rm lo.n i.c.ir.d from rbuht Com9..y

5ubs.rlptlon to Equlty shires
Uhraharlne & Plgmefts L frired

slb.cnption to Pr.f.renc. Shares
Ultramarine & Pism..ts Llmiled

(., uhr.ma.ln. ! Plam.nti um[.d
Co3i oI L:nd a.d other r.latedcost pav.bl.
sh.r. .pplicatio. money received pendina for allotm.nt
T.rm Loan

Bridg. Loan

lnt.rcn o. Len P.yabl.
Oth.E - fd Serui.. Rcnd.red

lb) Ms. Vldya SamD.th - R.nt for M.r.h 202.:t

O!tet.ndlnt Rec.lv.bl.
Mr Md|€ sahp:rh - Rent Deooslt
Ultramarine & PEme^& Limited

50.25

35,00

7.r5

1,670.00

r.69

r,025.00
85.58

1,r2a,00

380.00

46.80

2.18

130.82

300.00

r,505.00
,o00
6.ra
!.44
o.20

0.99

4,0.27

3,285.00

979,84

550.@
2,34

2,200,00

2,200.00

28.E0

980,82

134,00

550.00

2.t4
1.46

Llz,29

37 Sqm.nt Reportht
Th. company is ent.tcd in th. rn.nutc.ture and si. of Pigments.nd accoddiigt ha3 oily on. r.ponable s.gm.nt- H..c., th.r. are ho.ddtlon.l disclorqEs
to b. prdided u.d., l.d AS 10a 'Op€retin8 S.!m.nir'.

2 Tr.nr.cllons c..rl.doutwith rclat.d p..tle5 r€f.r.d ln 1.bove, in ordl..rY cou6eotbuilnest

:|8 C I r value of ropo.is

:t1rt March,2023 31st M.rch, 2022

11.46

52,49
33.46 52,49

39 Erp.rdltu.e in rorulan Cln nq

Durina the .urrcnt Um n.i.l yea r, apen fbm the lmpon of Raw Materl.lt.i m€ntioned in Note 38, no oth.r.xpen*s werc incurr.d in

39 €rmlna! ln for.lt[ .urr.nci.s I in L.kh3

31M.r(h,2023

!,079.35&port of 86ds caL.ul.t.d on FOB batl!

1,079,:t5

3! March,2022

63



/o Efiective froh lnADril,2o2l,thecompahyha3 implement.d an ERP sysrem. The financi.lmodoles and allothlrmodul.s alsohav. b... impl.mented a.d th.
isrues idenrified d u.ihg imptementarion h.v. bcen addre!3ed..d allthe hod uls are st.biTired and 13 ope6tlng w.lll sautf.ctorilv as on 31it M.r.h,2023. lt L5

.nru.ed rhar rher. w... no materlarissq.r that requir. ro b. hoditi.d orchang.d to th. ERP system ior r.lyint on th. d.ta aEilabl.ln th. system in

prcpaEtio. o, llnan.ial sratedent! for the ye.r ended 31sr M.rh, 2023. The .ompany ir in th. pr@$ ot .uloh:tihg sore ol th. prot..3.s .nd .Lo alig.inS

and revtitinS ro mod ify rhe erkti^s t^r.h.l contBl o*r li.anci.r r.porri.& wh.rev.. 4q!ied, with rh. contrcl3 ard pr@t56 Br.blith.d ln the nee EiP

system. Th€E w.r. no maierial obr.ry.rronr ordeviation. noti..d in the rRP sv3tem during th. y.ar€nd.d 3lst MaEh,2023 whlch wrllh.ve an imp.don th.
nnancialdat. andrh. financi.l information ttat.mentr pr.par.d.r. m.rchingwith th. Sook!olAccolnts mal.t.lned,

41 Code on So.la I S€.ur ltles

'D Earninss per thare {tP5l

i. Proft anrlburable ro Equity holders ofcompany

Th. c.nt6l Gowhtunt hes publieh.d Th. Code on SGi.l s.cunry, 2o2o .nd hd ustd.l n.latiohi Code, 2o2o ('th. .od4") i. the Gat.tt. ol l.dia, int dlia,
subsudingva.rour.rBtlnglabou.a.d ndostriallawr which d.al! wirh.mployees includhS p6t employm. p.nod. Th. efiectiv. d.t. or the code and ih.
rul.s arey.trob. notin.d. Th. imp..t ol th.legistative chans.s ifany willb. asr.sed 3nd r€cognised post .olirlcatio n of r.lev.ht p.ovirionr.

8asi.CPSamou.ti.....lculatedbydividln!theprcfilorrh.y!.r.$nbutabl.to.qultyholde6oftheComp..ybylhew.lghtd.v.a3.numberofEquity
shaEs out(.ndi.3 d!ring thetear.

oiluted EPS.mou.t3.E calculated bydlvldlne the prcit.ttrlblt bleto eqlity hold.6 ol rhe Cohp.ny byth. miaht.d areEge nqmb.. ol aqlitysh:cs
oltstandlnt durhg the yea.,

Profit.ttnbu!.b|. to equity holdeB ot ti. aomp.nv lor
baicand diloted larnlngr pershare 300.97 (2.25)

ll. welthled .v.r.te number ol odhary thares

.. NuDblr ol kso.d .qoity shaE at 13t Alrll 2022
b. Effect ot sh.Et r$u.d .s

3lslMarchZ0rl

220,10t0O
51,212,959

IITR

10,t 00
1,35,05,479

1o

basi. and dllut d e.mlnss ps rt.r.la+bl .l8.fer Not
a0.11 2,7t,57t959 7,36,t5,479

2,77,52,959

P.rdtulars

Weighted Av.r.t. Nu6b.r ol Eqully Shar.t
ol{zt-2022 Opening Bal.nc. of Equityshar.s
28{4.2022 Equity shaEs r33u.d to UltErunne& Plam.nteltd
o7-11'2022 Equity sh.r.i lti!.d !o Ult6ma.ine& Platunt ltd

Numbe, olsharer Clmuladve No. ofShar.t

2,20,10,000
13,rlo,om
99,m,OOO

2,20,10,0@

2,33,50,0@
3,32,50,0@

365 2,20,10,000

72,31,205
39,05,753

5,52,60,000

41 Dis.loru.es requted ar per Mi.ro, Sn.ll .nd Medium t erprires Development A.r, 2oO5

2022-24 2021-22

(l)Princip.lahou.tandl.te€rtpayabl.rorhE3upplre^.3rrlh.endoftheac@ontingy..r
21.31 34,20

(ii)Ihe.mo!.rollnt Est paid byth. buv.r ih t.rms of s.c.15 ol th. Micrc, Small.nd M.dlum Ent.rprires
Developmenl Act,2oo5 elo.g wlth th. ahount of payme.t mad. to th. supplier beyo.d rh.appoint€d day
dudnS ea.h .ccoqntirg y..r Nil

{iii)n'€amu ol hleres! d ue ..d p.y.ble lor the period ol d.l.y in h.kinr o.yru (which h.ve been p.id but
beyond the.ppoh&d day du.ingrh€ ye.r)but witholr addin8 rh. hre@st specified !nd.rthe Micro, Small.nd
Medluh Ent..prlier Development Act NI Nit

(1v)Iheamou.tot hteEstaccrued and..6aining unpaid at th. €nd of.ach a.countin!v..r
o.La Nil

(v)The arcut ol lunherinteresr cm.ininS du€ and payabi. in th. ru.c.eding yeaR, u.ril su.h date when th.
int.r€st du.3 as.bove aE a.tually paid to th. imallenterprise, forth. pu.pose ol dEallowan.c as dedu.tlble
expenditur. u/s 23 olMicrc,Smalland M.dlum Enterprises o.vclopment Ad, 2006 Nil Nit

42 A5 p€r tte A.dh,a Praderh hdunnal o€velopme Pollc, 2020-2023, the @mpany lr .ntltled to tte bclow m.ntlon€d bln.frl on commeclhenr ol
commerclal productaon. Tte b€low m..tlo...l benetts are b.*d o. tne dassifiGtlo. ol statut of the @np..yai large enterp,l* durlntthe yea..

es har be.^ m.de rothe extent ru.h es have b.en id..nn.d

(i)50e,,6.eimblBe6.itolnet.cfiuedsGsItorhestaterorsy.a6lromthedat.olCoCP

t4

lil. aa3l. .rrnlnal eer thare{i/ii(l l.ll {o.(x)l

4O.l 5t t.nent r.o.es.ntln. the W€ieht.med .ver.ee nlmber olsh.ret

NI

I

I



43 Net Debt Reconciliation
As .t 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

cash and cash equivalents 111.71 ta\47

Current Borrowings 434.25

Non Current borrowings inlcudifls Current Mrturties 6,421.63 3,875.00

Other Financial Liabilities lnterest Payable 46.74 a.-19

5,908.66 3,883.79

Net debt 5,196.95 3,702.32

This sectlon sets o!t an ana s of net debt and the m ovements in net debt for the
Liabilities from Fina ncins activiti€s

Cash and &sh Net D€bt

Net debtasat 3lst March 2021

Foreign exchange adiustments
lnterest expenses (capitalized)

Other non-cash movements
Acquisitions/dirposak
Fair value ad justrfi ents

81.22

100.28 3,875.00

32.22
-23.43

181.221
3,774.72

32.22
-23.43

Net debt as at 31st Mar.h 2022 181.50 3,883.79 3,702.29

f oreign erdange adjustments
ht€ren expenses (indudes lnleren capitali.ed i56.62)
lnterest paid

Other non-cash mov€ments
Acquisitions/disposals
Fairvalue adjustments

-59.79 2,647.O1

255.58
-227.s4

299.47 3,055.55

255.58

-227.54

Nei d€bt as at 313t March 2023 lll.7l 5,608.80 299.47 6,796.95

65

I

Non- Current borrowint'
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As p.r Section 135 (1)ol th. Comp.nies Act, 2013, . .omp.ny, meeti.a rh..pplicabillty thr.lhold durina the lmm€dl.l.ly precedihSnn.n.ialy..r, n.eds

to sp.nd at lea3t 216 ol ite .v.raee nel proir lor rh. imrcdiately preedln8 three li.ancial y..rt on GorpoGt. sdi.l r$ponsibility (csR) .dlvni.s. sin..
th. rhr.shold limit G .ot Nt,lhe CSR prql5io.i ar. not applidbl. ro th. companyduring th..or.nt fin.nci.ly..r.

a5 Ortre, itatutory lnfo.m.don
t)The Coopanydo.! not hrE ahv ben.miprop..ty, wherc any pro...dlng hrt b€.. t.ltl.ted or p.ndlng aeaiNtth. Comp!.y for holdin! .nV b.nami

4s corporateSocial A€spon5lbality

ii)The Cohpany hai not tr.d.d or invested in C.yplo currency orVin!.lCurrcncy duri.8 th. nhrnci.ly.ar

x)The Company has !e.d the boifowinF fiom ba.ks ahd nnan.lallnslltutio.s forthe sFecific porpose lor which it w.s obtained

Relevarl rl.€ lt.m ln salan.e Sheet

Property Plant & Eouirfr..r

r)Ihe companyd@e.ot h.v. any t.ansactio.. with companies which are struck off

a, Pr.vrous yeaB Ugurs h.v.bc.n resroup.d/r.cl.r.lfied whercver n..c83ary to .or8pond with the curent year's .la3silic.non/dis.losure.

lillThe Comp.ny har.ot.dEnc.d or ldn d or lnv.tr.d lu.d3 to rnyoth., pcRdG) or.ntit.!, includinSforcis..ntili.s {l.t.rhediariee) rth the

underttandi.g thar rh. lor.rrudlery 3h.ll:

(a) diEctlyor indnld! lend or i.v*t l. oth.r p.rrons or.nrii.3 id.nnfi.d in any m.nn.r whatsoever byo. on b.halfolthe cohp.nv {ultlh.t

lb) prcvide a.y au!6ntee, recurityo.th.llk to or on beh.ll of th. lltirote benenchn.r

Iv)Ih. comp.ny h8 not G.iEd anytu^d t6m $y p.Eon{s) or.nirl.r, lncludr.g forclgn .ntltl8 (lnt rrediatei) *lth th. lnderstandini (wh!th!r
r..ord.d in *riting or orh.tuie.) th.t th! int.rm.dr.t 3hall:

(.) drr€ctly or indlr.cit knd or Inv.st in othcr persons or.nrirl.s ld.nrified in.ny tunn r whar5ever byor on b.h.rofth.fundlnE p.ny
(uhimate b.n.nci.ri.5) or
(blprdid. a.v Suarantee, securityo. the llk. on behalfofthe ultlm.le beneficlaries.

v)Ihe Compa.ydo.s nol have any sqch tr.hractlon which is not.eco.d.d I. the b@ki ol..co!nti that has been sur.nd..ed or disclor.d.r locome

durinS the 
'rar 

in th. tai.!5e$ment5 und.rth.ln.om Tar Act, 1961lsu.h a3, search or r!rv.y or any other releva.t provilions of the ln.oru Tax Act,

!961,

vl)Th€ Compa.y d@i nor h.v..nV 3ubsidl.ry.nd h.n.. cl.Ge (37)of !.ction 2 of th. A.r r..d wirh the Compa.i.t {R.stricrioh ou.uh6.rol L.yeE}
nol.s, 2017 is not.ppl,c.!l.to rh. 6mpany.

vir)Ih. compahy Ir hol d.clared willfuid.f.!ll.r by..d bank orflnancl.h lnrtitutio. or lend..do.lng theyea.,

viii)The Companv dei not h.ve.ny charger or s.nsf.dion which k y.rto b. r.aist.r.d pith iOC b.yond the staiJrory period,

ir) Th. company h.. obLln.d working Grital .cdlt f.callty agaiBr Its currcnt a5s€ts .nd h.s il.d Qu.rrert rdlrnt or rtatements ol cu@.t .ts.ts with
b.nk or fiE..i:l i^tlllutio.i, Thefled i.tu,n o, tut.ments are i..8rc.mnt *ath b@kr ot e.counB.

ri)Ihe title deeds of alllh.lmmowble prcp.ni.!. Iother rh.n iEmov.bl. properties wh.r. th. Comp.nv is the le$...nd th. lease .grcem.nt5 .r. duly
.r.culed in hvor ol th. cohp.nv) diiclced ln $. financial rt.t menB in.luded in p6perty, plent .nd .q uiprent .nd ..pn.l *dkln ,roar.ss ... held
in th! n.me ol th. Comp.ryar at the bal.n..3h..t dat..xcEpt:

aha.t.,ed A..ounlants
rirm Re3n. No. ooo5115

R ,.J ' A O'---,.---c-- /),
Memb.rship No.203377
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